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FILED PURSUANT TO RULE 424(b)(2)

REGISTRATION NO. 333-206953

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Amount Proposed Proposed
Maximum Maximum
to be Aggregate Amount of
Offering Price
Registered Per Unit Offering Price Registration Fee(1)
$1,000,000,000 99.783% $997,830,000 $100,481.48

(1) The filing fee is calculated in accordance with Rule 457(r) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To Prospectus dated September 15, 2015)

SunTrust Banks, Inc.

$1,000,000,000

2.90% Senior Notes due 2021

SunTrust Banks, Inc. will pay interest on the notes on March 3 and September 3 of each year, beginning September 3, 2016. The notes will
mature on March 3, 2021.

The notes will be senior unsecured indebtedness of SunTrust Banks, Inc. and rank equally with SunTrust Banks, Inc. s other senior unsecured
indebtedness and will be effectively subordinated to SunTrust Banks, Inc. s secured indebtedness and indebtedness of its subsidiaries. The notes
will be issued only in fully registered book-entry form without coupons and in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples of $1,000 in
excess thereof. The notes will not be subject to redemption at our option at any time prior to February 3, 2021 (one month prior to their maturity
date). At any time and from time to time on or after February 3, 2021, we may, at our option, upon not less than 10 nor more than 60 days prior
notice, redeem all or any portion of the notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes to be redeemed plus
accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. The notes will not be subject to repayment at the option of the holder at any time prior to
maturity and will not be entitled to any sinking fund.

The notes will not be listed on any securities exchange. Currently there is no public market for the notes.

The notes will not be deposits or other obligations of a depository institution and will not be insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency.

Investing in the notes involves risk. See _Risk Factors beginning on page S-5 of this prospectus supplement to read about factors you
should consider before investing in the notes.
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Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities commission, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or
determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is
a criminal offense.

Per Note Total
Initial Public Offering Price” 99.783% $ 997,830,000
Underwriting Discount 0.300% $ 3,000,000
Proceeds, Before Expenses, to SunTrust Banks, Inc. 99.483% $ 994,830,000

(1) Plusaccrued interest, if any, from March 3, 2016.

The underwriters expect to deliver the notes in book-entry form only through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company against payment in
New York, New York on March 3, 2016. Beneficial interests in the notes will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through,
records maintained by The Depository Trust Company and its direct and indirect participants, including Clearstream Banking, société anonyme,
Luxembourg and Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V.

Joint Bookrunners

SunTrust Robinson Humphrey Citigroup Deutsche Bank Securities Morgan Stanley

Co-Managers

J.P. Morgan RBC Capital Markets UBS Investment Bank Lebenthal Capital Mischler Financial
Markets Group, Inc.

Prospectus Supplement dated February 29, 2016
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document consists of two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering. The second
part is the prospectus, which describes more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering. You should read both this
prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, together with additional information described below under the heading Where You
Can Find More Information.

Unless otherwise mentioned or unless the context requires otherwise, all references in this prospectus supplement to SunTrust, we, us, our or
similar references mean SunTrust Banks, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

If the information set forth in this prospectus supplement differs in any way from the information set forth in the accompanying prospectus, you
should rely on the information set forth in this prospectus supplement.

Neither we nor the underwriters have authorized anyone to provide you with information other than the information contained in this
prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, including the information incorporated by reference, or any free writing
prospectus that we prepare and distribute. Neither we nor the underwriters take any responsibility for, or provide any assurance as to
the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any
such free writing prospectus may be used only for the purposes for which they have been prepared.

We are not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not
permitted. You should not assume that the information appearing in this prospectus supplement or any document incorporated by
reference is accurate as of any date other than the date of the applicable document. Our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may have changed since that date. Neither this prospectus supplement nor the accompanying prospectus
constitutes an offer, or an invitation on our behalf or on behalf of the underwriters, to subscribe for and purchase, any of the securities
and may not be used for or in connection with an offer or solicitation by anyone, in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation
is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

S-ii
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC.
Our SEC filings are available to the public from the SEC s web site at http://www.sec.gov. To receive copies of public records not posted to the
SEC s web site at prescribed rates, you may complete an online form at http://www.sec.gov, send a fax to 202-772-9337 or submit a written
request to the SEC, Office of FOIA/PA Operations, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for
further information. Our SEC filings are also available at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, or the NYSE. For further information on
obtaining copies of our public filings at the NYSE, you should call 212-656-3000.

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose important information to

you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus supplement, and
later information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the following
documents listed below and any future filings made with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, prior to the termination of the offering (other than, in each case, information that is deemed not to have
been filed in accordance with SEC rules):

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015;

The portions of the Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on April 28, 2015
incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014; and

Current Reports on Form 8-K filed April 29, 2015, August 13, 2015, October 15, 2015, December 17, 2015 and February 4, 2016.
You may request a copy of these filings (other than an exhibit to a filing unless that exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference into that
filing), at no cost, by writing or calling us at the following address:

SunTrust Banks, Inc.
303 Peachtree Street, NE
Atlanta, Georgia 30308
Telephone: 404-588-7711
Attn: Corporate Secretary

We have also filed a registration statement (No. 333-206953) with the SEC relating to the securities offered by this prospectus supplement and
the accompanying prospectus. This prospectus supplement is part of the registration statement. You may obtain from the SEC a copy of the
registration statement and exhibits that we filed with the SEC when we registered the notes. The registration statement may contain additional
information that may be important to you.

Unless otherwise indicated, currency amounts in this prospectus supplement are stated in U.S. dollars.

S-iii
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement may contain forward-looking statements, including

statements about credit quality and the future prospects of SunTrust. Statements that do not describe historical or current facts, including

statements about beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements. These statements often include the words believes,  expects,
anticipates,  estimates, intends, plans, targets, potentially, probably, projects, outlook or similar expressions or future conditiona
may, will,  should, would and could.

Such statements are based upon the current beliefs and expectations of SunTrust s management and on information currently available to
management. The forward-looking statements are intended to be subject to the safe harbor provided by Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Such statements speak as of the date hereof, and SunTrust does
not assume any obligation to update the statements included or incorporated by reference herein or to update the reasons why actual results could
differ from those contained in such statements in light of new information or future events.

Forward-looking statements are subject to significant risks and uncertainties. Investors are cautioned against placing undue reliance on such
statements. Actual results may differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements can be found under the heading Risk Factors in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as well as in our periodic reports and Current Reports filed on Form 8-K with the SEC and
available at the SEC s internet site (http://www.sec.gov). Those factors include:

current and future legislation and regulation could require us to change our business practices, reduce our revenue, impose additional
costs on us, or otherwise adversely affect our business operations or competitiveness;

we are subject to increased capital adequacy and liquidity requirements and our failure to meet these requirements would adversely
affect our financial condition;

the fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government and its agencies could have a material adverse effect on our earnings;

our financial results have been, and may continue to be, materially affected by general economic conditions, and a deterioration of
economic conditions or of the financial markets may materially adversely affect our lending and other businesses and our financial
results and condition;

changes in market interest rates or capital markets could adversely affect our revenue and expenses, the value of assets and
obligations, and the availability and cost of capital and liquidity;

our earnings may be affected by volatility in mortgage production and servicing revenues, and by changes in carrying values of our
mortgage servicing rights and mortgages held for sale due to changes in interest rates;

disruptions in our ability to access global capital markets may adversely affect our capital resources and liquidity;

we are subject to credit risk;
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we may have more credit risk and higher credit losses to the extent that our loans are concentrated by loan type, industry
segment, borrower type, or location of the borrower or collateral;
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we rely on the mortgage secondary market and government-sponsored enterprises for some of our liquidity;

loss of customer deposits could increase our funding costs;

we are subject to litigation, and our expenses related to this litigation may adversely affect our results;

we may incur fines, penalties and other negative consequences from regulatory violations, possibly even inadvertent or unintentional
violations;

we are subject to certain risks related to originating and selling mortgages, and may be required to repurchase mortgage loans or
indemnify mortgage loan purchasers as a result of breaches of representations and warranties, or borrower fraud, and this could harm
our liquidity, results of operations, and financial condition;

we face certain risks as a servicer of loans; we are subject to risks related to delays in the foreclosure process; clients could pursue
alternatives to bank deposits, causing us to lose a relatively inexpensive source of funding;

consumers and small businesses may decide not to use banks to complete their financial transactions, which could affect net income;

we have businesses other than banking which subject us to a variety of risks; negative public opinion could damage our reputation
and adversely impact business and revenues;

we rely on other companies to provide key components of our business infrastructure;

competition in the financial services industry is intense and we could lose business or suffer margin declines as a result;

maintaining or increasing market share depends on market acceptance and regulatory approval of new products and services;

our ability to receive dividends from our subsidiaries or other investments could affect our liquidity and ability to pay dividends;

any reduction in our credit rating could increase the cost of our funding from the capital markets;

we have in the past and may in the future pursue acquisitions, which could affect costs and from which we may not be able to realize
anticipated benefits;

we depend on the expertise of key personnel, and if these individuals leave or change their roles without effective replacements,
operations may suffer;
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we may not be able to hire or retain additional qualified personnel and recruiting and compensation costs may increase as a result of
turnover, both of which may increase costs and reduce profitability and may adversely impact our ability to implement our business

strategies;

our framework for managing risks may not be effective in mitigating risk and loss to us;

our controls and procedures may not prevent or detect all errors or acts of fraud;

we are at risk of increased losses from fraud;

a failure in or breach of our operational or security systems or infrastructure, or those of our third party vendors and other service
providers, including as a result of cyber-attacks, could disrupt our businesses, result in the disclosure or misuse of confidential or
proprietary information, damage our reputation, increase our costs and cause losses;
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the soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us;

we depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about clients and counterparties;

our accounting policies and processes are critical to how we report our financial condition and results of operation, and they require
management to make estimates about matters that are uncertain;

depressed market values for our stock and adverse economic conditions sustained over a period of time may require us to write down
some portion of our goodwill;

our financial instruments measured at fair value expose us to certain market risks;

our stock price can be volatile;

we might not pay dividends on our stock; and

certain banking laws and certain provisions of our articles of incorporation may have an anti-takeover effect.

S-vi
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SUMMARY

The following information should be read together with the information contained in or incorporated by reference in other parts of this
prospectus supplement and in the accompanying prospectus. It may not contain all the information that is important to you. You should carefully
read this entire prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, as well as the information to which we refer you and the information
incorporated by reference herein, before making a decision about whether to invest in the notes. To the extent the following information is
inconsistent with the information in the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on the following information. If any statement in this
prospectus supplement conflicts with any statement in a document which we have incorporated by reference, then you should consider only the
statement in the more recent document. You should pay special attention to the Risk Factors section of this prospectus supplement to
determine whether an investment in the notes is appropriate for you.

SunTrust Banks, Inc.

SunTrust Banks, Inc., with total assets of $190.8 billion and total deposits of $149.8 billion as of December 31, 2015, is one of the nation s
largest commercial banking organizations whose businesses provide a broad range of financial services to consumer, business, and corporate
clients.

Through our flagship subsidiary, SunTrust Bank, we offer a full line of financial services for consumers and businesses including deposit, credit,
mortgage banking, and trust and investment services. Additional subsidiaries provide asset management, securities brokerage, and capital market
services. SunTrust s client base encompasses a broad range of individuals and families, businesses, institutions, and governmental agencies.

SunTrust enjoys strong market positions in some of the highest growth markets in the United States and also serves clients in selected markets
nationally. Our priorities include consistency in financial performance, quality in customer service and a strong commitment to all segments of
the communities we serve.

As of December 31, 2015, SunTrust had 1,401 full service banking offices and 2,160 ATMs, which are located primarily in Florida, Georgia,
Maryland, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Virginia and the District of Columbia. In addition, SunTrust provides clients with a
selection of branch-based and technology-based banking channels, including the internet, mobile, ATMs, and telebanking. Our internet address
is http://www.suntrust.com. Information presented on or accessed through our web site is not incorporated into, or made a part of, this
prospectus supplement.

As of December 31, 2015, SunTrust had total assets under advisement of $144.4 billion. This includes $96.1 billion in trust assets as well as
$48.3 billion in retail brokerage assets. SunTrust s mortgage servicing portfolio was $148.2 billion as of December 31, 2015.

Our principal executive offices are located at SunTrust Banks, Inc., 303 Peachtree Street, NE, Atlanta, Georgia 30308. Our telephone number is
404-588-7711.

S-1
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Summary of the Offering

The following summary contains basic information about the notes and the offering and is not intended to be complete. It does not contain all
the information that is important to you. For a more complete understanding of the notes, you should read the section of this prospectus
supplement entitled Description of the Notes.

Issuer SunTrust Banks, Inc.

Securities Offered 2.90% Senior Notes due 2021

Maturity Date March 3, 2021

Interest Payments The notes will bear interest from March 3, 2016 or from the most recent interest payment

date on which we paid or provided for interest on the notes, at the rate of 2.90% per
annum. We will pay interest on the notes semiannually in arrears on March 3 and
September 3 of each year beginning on September 3, 2016. Interest on the notes will be
calculated based on a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.

Redemption/Repayment The notes will not be subject to redemption at our option at any time prior to February 3,
2021 (one month prior to their maturity date). At any time on or after February 3, 2021,
we may, at our option, at any time and from time to time, redeem all or any portion of the
notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus
accrued but unpaid interest thereon to the date of redemption.

The notes will not be subject to repayment at the option of the holder at any time prior to
maturity.

Ranking The notes will be senior unsecured indebtedness of SunTrust Banks, Inc. and rank equally
with our other senior unsecured indebtedness and will be effectively subordinated to our
secured indebtedness and indebtedness of our subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2015, we
had $1.3 billion of outstanding secured debt. At December 31, 2015, our subsidiaries
direct borrowings and deposit liabilities totaled approximately $154.0 billion.

Use of Proceeds We expect to receive net proceeds from this offering of approximately $993.6 million,
after expenses and underwriting commissions. We intend to use the net proceeds from
this offering, together with cash on hand, to redeem $1.0 billion in aggregate principal
amount of our outstanding 3.6% Senior Notes due 2016 (the 2076 Notes ) in accordance
with their terms and to use any additional amounts for general corporate purposes. For
further information, see Use of Proceeds in this prospectus supplement.
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The notes will be issued in book-entry form through the facilities of The Depository Trust
Company, which we refer to along with its successors in this capacity as DTC, in
minimum denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof.

The notes will be accepted for clearance by DTC. Beneficial interests in the global
securities will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through, the
book-entry records maintained by DTC and its direct and indirect participants, including
Euroclear Bank, S.A.//N.V. ( Euroclear ) and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme,
Luxembourg ( Clearstream ). Owners of beneficial interests in the notes will receive all
payments relating to their notes in U.S. dollars.

The notes will not be listed on any securities exchange.

U.S. Bank National Association.

The notes and the indenture governing the notes are governed by the laws of the State of
New York.

See Risk Factors and the other information included or incorporated by reference in this
prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus for a discussion of the factors
you should consider carefully before deciding to invest in the notes.

SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., our subsidiary, is participating in this offering of
notes as an underwriter. Accordingly, this offering is being conducted in compliance with
the provisions of FINRA Rule 5121. SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. is not permitted
to sell the notes in this offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary
authority without the prior specific written approval of the customer to which the account
relates.

In the future, SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. or our other affiliates may repurchase
and resell the notes in market-making transactions, with resales being made at prices
related to prevailing market prices at the time of the resale or at negotiated prices.

To the extent the underwriters or their affiliates own any of the 2016 Notes to be
redeemed using the net proceeds of this offering, they will receive a portion of the net
proceeds of this offering.

S-3
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Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The following table shows our consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges. The ratio of earnings to fixed charges has been computed by
dividing:

net income excluding income taxes plus fixed charges, by

fixed charges.
Fixed charges represent interest expense, either including or excluding interest on deposits as set forth below, and the portion of net rental
expense deemed to be equivalent to interest on long-term debt. Interest expense, other than on deposits, includes interest on long-term debt,
funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase, trading liabilities and other short-term borrowings.

Year Ended December 31
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Including interest on deposits 5.59X 4.58X 3.66X 4.26X 1.64X
Excluding interest on deposits 8.31X 6.70X 5.97X 7.60X 2.36X

S-4
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in the notes involves certain risks. You should carefully consider the risks related to the notes described below, the risk factors
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, as well as the other information included or incorporated
by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, before making an investment decision. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. This prospectus supplement also contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the risks related to the notes and faced by us included or incorporated by
reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

The Notes Are Our Obligations and Not Obligations of Our Subsidiaries and Will Be Structurally Subordinated to the Claims of Our
Subsidiaries Creditors.

The notes are exclusively our obligations and not those of our subsidiaries. We are a holding company that conducts substantially all of our
operations through our bank and non-bank subsidiaries. As a result, our ability to make payments on the notes will depend primarily upon the
receipt of dividends and other distributions from our subsidiaries. If we do not receive sufficient cash dividends and other distributions from our
subsidiaries, it is unlikely that we will have sufficient funds to make payments on the notes.

Our subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities. Our subsidiaries have no obligation to pay any amounts due on the notes or to provide us
with funds to pay our obligations, whether by dividends, distributions, loans or other payments. In addition, any dividend payments,
distributions, loans or advances to us by our subsidiaries in the future will require the generation of future earnings by our subsidiaries and may
require regulatory approval. Regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the Federal Reserve ) affect the ability of
SunTrust Bank to pay dividends and other distributions to us and to make loans to us. If SunTrust Bank is unable to make dividend payments to
us and sufficient funds are not otherwise available, we may not be able to make principal and interest payments on our debt, including the notes.

In addition, our right to participate in any distribution of assets of any of our subsidiaries upon the subsidiary s liquidation or otherwise will
generally be subject to the prior claims of creditors of that subsidiary. Your ability as a holder of the notes to benefit indirectly from that
distribution also will be subject to these prior claims. The notes are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries. As a result, the notes will be
structurally subordinated to all existing and future liabilities and obligations of our subsidiaries (whether secured or unsecured), including

deposits, which means that our subsidiaries creditors will be paid from our subsidiaries assets before holders of the notes would have any claims
to those assets. At December 31, 2015, our subsidiaries direct borrowings and deposit liabilities totaled approximately $154.0 billion. Our
subsidiaries may incur additional debt and liabilities in the future, all of which would rank structurally senior to the notes.

The Notes Will Be Effectively Junior to All of Our Secured Indebtedness

The notes will be effectively subordinated to any secured debt we may incur, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt. In the
event that we are declared bankrupt, become insolvent or are liquidated or reorganized, any secured debt will be entitled to be paid in full from
the assets securing such debt before any payment may be made with respect to the notes. Holders of the notes will participate ratably with all
holders of our unsecured indebtedness that is deemed to be of the same

S-5
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ranking as the notes, and potentially with all of our other general creditors, based upon the respective amounts owed to each holder or creditor,
in our remaining assets.

In any of the foregoing events, we may not have sufficient assets to pay amounts due on the notes. As a result, if holders of the notes receive any
payments, they may receive less, ratably, than holders of secured indebtedness.

As of December 31, 2015, we had $1.3 billion of outstanding secured debt, and the indenture under which the notes will be issued does not
preclude us from issuing additional secured debt. See the section of this prospectus supplement entitled Description of the Notes Limitations on
Mergers and Sale of Assets and Description of the Notes Restrictions on Disposition of Voting Stock of Certain Subsidiaries.

There Are Limited Covenants in the Indenture

Neither we nor any of our subsidiaries is restricted from incurring additional debt or other liabilities, including additional senior debt, under the
indenture. If we incur additional debt or liabilities, our ability to pay our obligations on the notes could be adversely affected. We expect to
incur, from time to time, additional debt and other liabilities. In addition, we are not restricted under the indenture from granting security
interests over our assets, except to the extent described under Description of the Notes Limitations on Mergers and Sale of Assets and

Description of the Notes Restrictions on Disposition of Voting Stock of Certain Subsidiaries in this prospectus supplement, or from paying
dividends or issuing or repurchasing its securities.

In addition, there are no financial covenants in the indenture. You are not protected under the indenture in the event of a highly leveraged

transaction, reorganization, a default under our existing indebtedness, restructuring, merger or similar transaction that may adversely affect you,

except to the extent described under Description of the Notes Limitations on Mergers and Sale of Assets and Description of the Notes Restrictions
on Disposition of Voting Stock of Certain Subsidiaries included in this prospectus supplement.

The Notes Are Not Insured or Guaranteed by the FDIC

The notes are not savings accounts, deposits or other obligations of any of our bank or non-bank subsidiaries and are not insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (the FDIC ) or any other governmental agency or instrumentality.

You May Be Unable to Sell the Notes Because There is No Public Trading Market for the Notes

The notes are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. The notes will not be listed on any securities exchange or included in
any automated quotation system. Consequently, the notes will be relatively illiquid and you may be unable to sell your notes. Further, if you are
able to sell your notes, there can be no assurance as to the price you will receive in such a sale. Future market prices of the notes will depend on
many factors, including prevailing interest rates, the condition of the financial markets, our financial condition and results of operations, the
then-current ratings assigned to us or our debt securities, and the markets for similar securities.

Although the representatives of the underwriters have advised us that, following completion of the offering of the notes, one or more of the
underwriters currently intend to make a secondary market in the notes, they are not obligated to do so and may discontinue any market-making
activities at any time without notice. Accordingly, a trading market for the notes may not develop or any such market may not have sufficient
liquidity.

S-6
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We expect to receive net proceeds from this offering of approximately $993.6 million, after expenses and underwriting commissions. We intend
to use the net proceeds from this offering, together with cash on hand, to redeem $1.0 billion in aggregate principal amount of our 2016 Notes in
accordance with their terms and to use any additional amounts for general corporate purposes, which may include securities repurchase
programs, capital expenditures, working capital, repayment or reduction of long-term and short-term debt and the financing of acquisitions.
Pending such use of the net proceeds, we may invest the proceeds in highly liquid short-term securities. The 2016 Notes are scheduled to mature
on April 15, 2016.

To the extent the underwriters or their affiliates own any of the 2016 Notes being redeemed, they will receive a portion of the net proceeds of
this offering.

S-7
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REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS

As a financial holding company and a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the BHC Act ),
SunTrust is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve. For a discussion of the material elements of the
regulatory framework applicable to financial holding companies, bank holding companies and their subsidiaries and specific information
relevant to SunTrust, please refer to SunTrust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, and the subsequent
reports we file with the SEC, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. This regulatory framework is intended
primarily for the protection of depositors, the federal deposit insurance funds and the financial stability of the United States, and not for the
protection of security holders. As a result of this regulatory framework, SunTrust s earnings are affected by actions of the Federal Reserve, the
FDIC, which insures the deposits of our banking subsidiaries within certain limits, and the SEC, which regulates the activities of certain
subsidiaries engaged in the securities business.

Numerous governmental requirements and regulations, as well as legislative actions, affect our business activities. A change in applicable
statutes, regulations or regulatory policy may have a material effect on SunTrust s business.

Depository institutions, like SunTrust s bank subsidiaries, are also affected by various federal laws, including those relating to consumer
protection and similar matters. SunTrust also has other financial services subsidiaries regulated, supervised and examined by the Federal
Reserve, as well as other relevant state and federal regulatory agencies and self-regulatory organizations. SunTrust s non-bank subsidiaries may
be subject to other laws and regulations of the federal government or the various states in which they are authorized to do business.

S-8
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The following is selected consolidated financial data for SunTrust for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. The selected

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

consolidated financial data for each of the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 are derived from our audited consolidated financial

statements. Our consolidated financial statements for each of the three years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm. The summary below should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated
financial statements, and the related notes thereto, and the other detailed information contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2015. For more information, see the section entitled Where You Can Find More Information.

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)
Summary of Operations

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for credit losses

Net interest income after provision for credit losses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense!

Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes"

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net income

Net income available to common shareholders
Net interest income-FTE®,®
Total revenue-FTE®,®

Net Income Per Average Common Share
Diluted

Adjusted Diluted®

Basic

Dividends paid per common share

Table of Contents

Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
$5,265 $5,384 $5,388

501 544 535
4,764 4,840 4,853
165 342 553
4,599 4,498 4,300
3,268 3,323 3,214
5,160 5,543 5,831
2,707 2,278 1,683
764 493 322
10 11 17
$1,933 $1,774 $1,344
$ 1,863 $1,722 $1,297
4,906 4,982 4,980
8,174 8,305 8,194
$ 3.58 $ 3.23 $ 241
3.58 3.24 2.74
3.62 3.26 2.43
0.92 0.70 0.35
S-9
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(Dollars in millions)

Selected Average Balances

Total assets

Earning assets

Loans

Consumer and commercial deposits
Total shareholders equity

As of Period End

Total assets

Earning assets

Loans

Allowance for loan and lease losses
Consumer and commercial deposits
Long-term debt

Total shareholders equity

Financial Ratios and Other Data
Return on average total assets

Return on average common shareholders equity

Net interest margin-FTE®
Efficiency ratio-FTE®-®
Allowance to period-end loans

Nonperforming assets to period-end loans, OREO, other repossessed assets, and

nonperforming loans held for sale
Common dividend payout ratio
Full-service banking offices(#)
ATMs(#)

Full-time equivalent employees(#)

Average common shares-diluted (thousands)
Average common shares-basic (thousands)

Regulatory Capital Ratios (at Period End)®
Common equity tier 1 ( CET1 ) ratio (Basel III)
Fully phased-in CET]1 ratio (Basel IINH®

Tier 1 common equity ratio (Basel I)

Tier 1 capital ratio
Total risk-based capital ratio
Tier 1 leverage ratio

Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014

$ 188,892 $182,176
168,813 162,189
133,558 130,874
144,202 132,012
23,346 22,170
$ 190,817 $ 190,328
172,114 168,678
136,442 133,112
1,752 1,937
148,921 139,234
8,462 13,022
23,437 23,005

1.02% 0.97%
8.42 8.06
291 3.07
63.13 66.74
1.29% 1.46
0.54 0.59
25.5 21.5
1,401 1,445
2,160 2,187
24,043 24,638
520,586 533,391
514,844 527,500
9.96% N/A
9.80 N/A

N/A 9.60%
10.80 10.80
12.54 12.51
9.69 9.64

2013

$ 172,497
153,728
122,657
127,076

21,167

$ 175,335
156,856
127,877

2,044
127,735
10,700
21,422

0.78%
6.34
3.24
71.16
1.60

0.91
14.5
1,497
2,243
26,281
539,093
534,283

N/A
N/A
9.82%
10.81
12.81
9.58

(1) Amortization expense related to qualified affordable housing investment costs is recognized in provision for income taxes for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, as allowed by an accounting standard adopted in 2014. For periods prior to 2014, these amounts were
previously recognized in other noninterest expense and have been reclassified for comparability as presented.

(2) We present net interest income, total revenue, net interest margin and the efficiency ratio on a fully taxable equivalent ( FTE ) basis. The
FTE basis adjusts for the tax-favored status of income from certain loans and investments. We believe this measure to be the preferred
industry measurement of net interest income and it enhances comparability of net interest income arising from taxable and tax-exempt

sources.
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(3) These are non-GAAP financial measures. See pages 27 through 32 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2015, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, for a reconciliation of these non-GAAP measures to the related
GAAP measures.

(4) Final capital rules based on Basel III became effective for us on January 1, 2015. Thus, our CET1 ratios, which are calculated under the
Basel I1I-based final capital rules, are not applicable ( N/A ) in periods ending prior to January 1, 2015, and our Tier 1 common equity ratio,
which is calculated based on the previous Basel I-based capital guidelines, is N/A in periods ending on or after January 1, 2015. Our Tier 1
capital, total capital, and Tier 1 leverage ratios for periods ended prior to January 1, 2015 were also calculated under previous Basel
I-based capital guidelines. Our fully phased-in CET1 ratio at December 31, 2015 is estimated.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES

The following is a brief description of the terms of the notes, which does not purport to be complete in all respects. This description is subject to
and qualified in its entirety by reference to the Indenture (as defined below).

General

The notes will be issued in an initial aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000,000 and will mature on March 3, 2021. The notes will not be
entitled to any sinking fund. The notes will be issued only in fully registered book-entry form without coupons and in denominations of $5,000
and integral multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof. We do not intend to apply for the listing of the notes on any securities exchange. The notes
will be issued pursuant to the indenture dated September 10, 2007 between us and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the Indenture ).
As discussed below, payment of the principal of, and interest on, the notes represented by one or more global notes registered in the name of or
held by DTC or its nominee will be made in immediately available funds to DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner and
holder of such global note.

We may, without the consent of the holders of the notes, issue additional notes offered by this prospectus supplement, provided that such
additional notes would be treated as part of the same issue as the original notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Any additional notes will
have the same ranking, interest rate, maturity date and other terms as the notes offered hereby (except for the issue date, public offering price
and, if applicable, the initial interest accrual date and first interest payment date). Any additional notes issued by us, together with the notes
offered by this prospectus supplement, will constitute the same series of debt securities under the Indenture.

Interest

The notes will bear interest at a rate of 2.90% per annum from March 3, 2016 or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has
been paid or provided for, payable semiannually in arrears on March 3 and September 3 of each year, beginning September 3, 2016. Interest
payable on the notes on any interest payment date will be payable to the persons in whose names the notes are registered at the close of business
on the fifteenth calendar day next preceding the interest payment date. Interest on the notes will be calculated based on a 360-day year consisting
of twelve 30-day months.

If any interest payment date or the maturity date of any of the notes is not a business day, then payment of principal and interest will be made on
the next succeeding business day. No interest will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from such interest payment date or maturity
date, as the case may be, to the date payment is made.

A Dbusiness day means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or any other day on which banking institutions and trust companies in New
York, New York or Atlanta, Georgia, are permitted or required by any applicable law to close.

S-12
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Ranking

The notes will be senior unsecured indebtedness of SunTrust Banks, Inc. and rank equally with our other senior unsecured indebtedness and will
be effectively subordinate to our secured indebtedness. As of December 31, 2015 we and our subsidiaries had $1.3 billion of outstanding secured
debt. Because we are a holding company, our right to participate in any distribution of the assets of our banking or nonbanking subsidiaries,
upon a subsidiary s dissolution, winding-up, liquidation or reorganization or otherwise, and thus the ability of a holder of notes to benefit
indirectly from such distribution, is subject to the prior claims of creditors of any such subsidiary, except to the extent that we may be a creditor
of that subsidiary and our claims are recognized. There are legal limitations on the extent to which some of our subsidiaries may extend credit,
pay dividends or otherwise supply funds to, or engage in transactions with, us or some of our other subsidiaries. Our subsidiaries are separate
and distinct legal entities and have no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to pay amounts due under our contracts or otherwise to make any
funds available to us. Accordingly, the notes effectively will be subordinated to all existing and future liabilities of our subsidiaries. As of
December 31, 2015, our subsidiaries ~direct borrowings and deposit liabilities totaled approximately $154.0 billion.

Redemption or Repayment

The notes will not be subject to redemption at our option at any time prior to February 3, 2021 (one month prior to their maturity date). At any
time on or after February 3, 2021, we may, at our option, at any time and from time to time, upon not less than 10 nor more than 60 days prior
notice, redeem all or any portion of the notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes to be redeemed plus
accrued but unpaid interest thereon to the date of redemption.

The notes will not be subject to repayment at the option of the holder at any time prior to maturity and will not be entitled to any sinking fund.
Events of Default, Waiver and Notice

An event of default, when used in the Indenture, means any of the following:

non-payment of interest on the notes for 30 days after such payment becomes due;

non-payment of the principal on the notes when due;

our failure for 90 days after notice in performing any other covenant or warranty in the Indenture;

bankruptcy of SunTrust; or

receivership of SunTrust Bank.
If an event of default under the Indenture occurs and continues, the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding notes may declare the entire principal and all accrued but unpaid interest of all notes to be due and payable immediately. If such a
declaration occurs, the holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes can, subject to certain conditions, rescind
the declaration.

The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes may waive any past default, except:

a default in payment of principal or interest; or
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a default under any provision of the Indenture that itself cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the holder of each
outstanding note.
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The holders of a majority in principal amount of the notes shall have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding
for any remedy available to the trustee.

We are required to file an officers certificate with the trustee each year that states, to the knowledge of the certifying officers, whether or not any
defaults exist under the terms of the Indenture.

Limitations on Mergers and Sales of Assets

The Indenture generally permits a consolidation or merger between us and another entity. It also permits the sale or transfer by us of all or
substantially all of our property and assets. These transactions are permitted if:

the resulting or acquiring entity, if other than us, is organized and existing under the laws of a domestic jurisdiction and assumes all
of our responsibilities and liabilities under the Indenture, including the payment of all amounts due on the notes and performance of
the covenants in the Indenture;

immediately after the transaction, and giving effect to the transaction, no event of default under the Indenture exists; and

certain other conditions as prescribed in the Indenture are met.
If we consolidate or merge with or into any other entity or sell or lease all or substantially all of our assets according to the terms and conditions
of the Indenture, the resulting or acquiring entity will be substituted for us in such Indenture with the same effect as if it had been an original
party to the Indenture. As a result, such successor entity may exercise our rights and powers under the Indenture, in our name and, except in the
case of a lease of all or substantially all of our properties and assets, we will be released from all our liabilities and obligations under the
Indenture and under the notes.

Restriction on Disposition of Voting Stock of Certain Subsidiaries

Under the Indenture, we have agreed not to sell, assign, pledge, transfer or otherwise dispose of any shares of capital stock of any principal
subsidiary bank or any securities convertible into or rights to subscribe to such capital stock unless after giving effect to such transaction we
would own, directly or indirectly, at least 80% of the outstanding shares of capital stock of each class of capital stock of such principal
subsidiary bank. We additionally agreed not to pay any dividend or distribution in capital stock of any principal subsidiary bank unless such
principal subsidiary bank, after obtaining any necessary regulatory appraisals, unconditionally guarantees payment of principal and interest on
the notes.

The Indenture defines a principal subsidiary bank as any subsidiary bank, the consolidated assets of which constitute 50% or more of our
consolidated assets. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, SunTrust Bank was the only subsidiary bank that is a principal subsidiary bank
under the Indenture.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this covenant does not prohibit:

any dispositions made by us or any principal subsidiary bank (a) acting in a fiduciary capacity for any person other than us or any
principal subsidiary bank or (b) to us or any of our wholly-owned subsidiaries; or

the merger or consolidation of a principal subsidiary bank with and into another principal subsidiary bank.
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This covenant also does not prohibit sales, assignments, pledges, transfers or other dispositions of voting stock of a principal subsidiary bank
where:

the sale, assignment, pledge, transfer or other disposition is made, in the minimum amount required by law, to any person for the
purpose of the qualification of such person to serve as a director;

the sale, assignment, pledge, transfer or other disposition is made in compliance with an order of a court or regulatory authority of
competent jurisdiction or as a condition imposed by any such court or regulatory authority to the acquisition by us or any principal
subsidiary bank, directly or indirectly, of any other corporation or entity;

the sale, assignment, pledge, transfer or other disposition of voting stock or any other securities convertible into or rights to subscribe
to voting stock of a principal subsidiary bank as long as (a) such transaction is made for fair market value as determined by our board
of directors or the board of directors of the subsidiary disposing of such voting stock or securities and (b) after giving effect to such
transaction and to any potential dilution, we and our directly or indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries will own, directly or indirectly,
at least 80% of the voting stock of such principal subsidiary bank;

any principal subsidiary bank sells additional shares of its voting stock to shareholders at any price, so long as immediately after such
sale we will own, directly or indirectly, at least as great a percentage of the voting stock of such principal subsidiary bank as we
owned prior to the sale of such additional shares; or

a pledge is made or a lien is created to secure loans or other extensions of credit by a principal subsidiary bank subject to
Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act.
Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance

The Indenture provides that we may deposit in trust with the trustee cash or government securities in an amount sufficient, without reinvestment,
to pay all sums due on the notes. If we make this deposit with respect to the notes, then, at our option, we:

will be deemed to have satisfied and paid all of our obligations in respect of the notes; or

will not need to comply with certain restrictive covenants contained in the Indenture and the occurrence of a covenant default will no
longer be an event of default with respect to the notes, which we refer to as covenant defeasance.
Such a trust may only be established if, among other things:

no event of default exists or occurs as a result of such deposit; and

we deliver an opinion of a nationally recognized tax counsel to the effect that the holders will not recognize income, gain or loss for
federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit and defeasance.
If we exercise our covenant defeasance option with respect to the notes and the maturity of the notes is accelerated upon an event of default, the
amount of cash and government securities on deposit with the trustee may not be sufficient to pay amounts due on the notes at the time of the
acceleration. However, we will remain liable with respect to such payments.
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Modification of the Indenture

Under the Indenture, certain of our rights and obligations and certain of the rights of holders of the notes may be modified or amended with the
consent of the holders of at least a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the notes outstanding. However, the following modifications
and amendments will not be effective against any holder of the notes without its consent:

a change in the stated maturity date of any payment of principal or interest, including any additional interest;

a reduction in or change in the manner of calculating payments due on the notes;

a change in the place of payment or currency in which any payment on the notes is payable;

a limitation of a holder s right to sue us for the enforcement of payments due on the notes;

a reduction in the percentage of outstanding notes required to consent to a modification or amendment of the Indenture or required to
consent to a waiver of compliance with certain provisions of the Indenture or certain defaults under the Indenture;

a reduction in the requirements contained in the Indenture for quorum or voting; and

a modification of any of the foregoing requirements contained in the Indenture.
Under the Indenture, the holders of at least a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes may waive compliance by us
with any covenant or condition contained in the Indenture.

We and the trustee may execute, without the consent of any holder of notes, any supplemental indenture for the purposes of:

evidencing the succession of another corporation to us, and the assumption by such successor of our covenants contained in the
Indenture and the notes;

adding covenants by us for the benefit of the holders of the notes, transferring any property to or with the trustee or surrendering any
of our rights or powers under the Indenture;

adding any additional events of default for the notes;

evidencing and providing for the acceptance of appointment under the Indenture by a successor trustee with respect to the notes;

curing any ambiguity, correcting or supplementing any provision in the Indenture that may be defective or inconsistent with any
other provision therein or making any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under the Indenture, provided that
such other provisions shall not adversely affect the interests of the holders of the notes in any material respect;
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adding to, changing or eliminating any provision of the Indenture as shall be necessary or desirable in accordance with any
amendments to the Trust Indenture Act;

supplementing any provision of the Indenture to such extent as shall be necessary to permit or facilitate the defeasance and discharge
of the notes in accordance with the Indenture, provided that such action shall not adversely affect the interests of any of the holders
of the notes in any material respect; or

conforming the terms of the Indenture and the notes to the description of the notes in this prospectus supplement, in the manner
provided in the Indenture.
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Governing Law
The Indenture and the notes will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
The Trustee

U.S. Bank National Association will act as trustee for the notes. The trustee will have all of the duties and responsibilities specified under the
Trust Indenture Act. Other than its duties in a case of default, the trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the powers under the Indenture
at the request, order or direction of any holders of notes unless offered reasonable indemnification.

Miscellaneous

We or our affiliates may from time to time purchase any of the notes that are then outstanding by tender, in the open market or by private
agreement.
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BOOK-ENTRY, DELIVERY AND FORM OF NOTES

The notes will be issued in book-entry form through DTC. DTC will act as securities depositary for the notes. The notes will be issued only as
fully registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. The notes will be accepted for clearance by DTC. Beneficial interests in the global securities will be shown
on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through, the book-entry records maintained by DTC and its direct and indirect participants,
including Euroclear and Clearstream. Owners of beneficial interests in the notes will receive all payments relating to their notes in U.S. dollars.
One or more fully registered global security certificates, representing the aggregate principal amount of notes issued, will be issued and will be
deposited with DTC and will bear a legend regarding the restrictions on exchanges and registration of transfer referred to below.

The laws of some jurisdictions may require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of securities in definitive form. These laws
may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in the notes, so long as the notes are represented by global security certificates.

DTC has advised us that it is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a banking organization within
the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a clearing corporation within the meaning of the New
York Uniform Commercial Code and a clearing agency registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds
securities deposited with it by its participants, and it facilitates the settlement among direct participants of sales and other securities transactions
in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between direct participants accounts. This eliminates
the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust &
Clearing Corporation ( DTCC ). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to DTC s system is
also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers (including agents), banks, trust companies and clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a direct participant, either directly or indirectly. The DTC rules
applicable to its participants are on file with the SEC.

Purchases of notes under the DTC system must be made by or through direct participants, which will receive a credit for the notes on DTC s
records. The ownership interest of each beneficial owner of notes will be recorded on the direct or indirect participants records. Beneficial
owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial owners are, however, expected to receive written
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the direct or indirect participant through
which the beneficial owner entered into the transaction. Under a book-entry format, holders may experience some delay in their receipt of
payments, as such payments will be forwarded by the trustee to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. DTC will forward the payments to its
participants, who will then forward them to indirect participants or holders. Beneficial owners of notes other than DTC or its nominees will not
be recognized by the registrar and transfer agent as registered holders of the notes entitled to the rights of holders thereof. Beneficial owners that
are not participants will be permitted to exercise their rights only indirectly through and according to the procedures of participants and, if
applicable, indirect participants.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all notes deposited by direct participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC s partnership nominee,
Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of notes with DTC and their
registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial
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ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual beneficial owners of the notes; DTC s records reflect only the identity of the direct participants
to whose accounts the notes are credited, which may or may not be the beneficial owners. The direct and indirect participants will remain
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to direct participants, by direct participants to indirect participants, and by direct and
indirect participants to beneficial owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as
may be in effect from time to time.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to notes unless authorized by a direct participant in
accordance with DTC s procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxy to the issuer as soon as possible after the record
date. The omnibus proxy assigns Cede & Co. s consenting or voting rights to those direct participants to whose accounts notes are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the omnibus proxy).

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depositary with respect to the notes at any time by giving reasonable notice to the
issuer or its agent. Under these circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depositary is not obtained, certificates for the notes are
required to be printed and delivered. We may decide to discontinue the use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depositary). In that event, certificates for the notes will be printed and delivered to DTC. If an event of default with respect
to the notes has occurred and is continuing, a holder may request that certificates for the notes be registered in such holder s names.

As long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the global security certificates, DTC or its nominee, as the case may be, will be
considered the sole owner and holder of the global security certificates and all notes represented by these certificates for all purposes under the
instruments governing the rights and obligations of holders of notes. Except in the limited circumstances referred to above, owners of beneficial
interests in global security certificates:

will not be entitled to have such global security certificates or the notes represented by these certificates registered in their names;

will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of securities certificates in exchange for beneficial interests in global
security certificates; and

will not be considered to be owners or holders of the global security certificates or the notes represented by these certificates for any

purpose under the instruments governing the rights and obligations of holders of notes.
Payments with respect to notes represented by the global security certificates and all transfers and deliveries of notes will be made to DTC or its
nominee, as the case may be, as the registered holder of the notes. DTC s practice is to credit direct participants accounts upon DTC s receipt of
funds and corresponding detail information from the issuer or its agent, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown
on DTC s records. Payments by participants to beneficial owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the
case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in street name, and will be the responsibility of that
participant and not of DTC, the trustee, the issuer or any of their agents, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect
from time to time. Payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) are the
responsibility of the issuer or its agent, disbursement of such payments to direct participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement
of such payments to the beneficial owners will be the responsibility of direct and indirect participants.
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Ownership of beneficial interests in the global security certificates will be limited to participants or persons that may hold beneficial interests
through institutions that have accounts with DTC or its nominee. Ownership of beneficial interests in global security certificates will be shown
only on, and the transfer of those ownership interests will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee, with respect to
participants interests, or any participant, with respect to interests of persons held by the participant on their behalf. Payments, transfers,
deliveries, exchanges, and other matters relating to beneficial interests in global security certificates may be subject to various policies and
procedures adopted by DTC from time to time. Neither we nor any agent for us will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of DTC s
or any direct or indirect participant s records relating to, or for payments made on account of, beneficial interests in global security certificates, or
for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any of DTC s records or any direct or indirect participant s records relating to these beneficial
ownership interests.

Although DTC has agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfer of interests in the global security certificates among
participants, DTC is under no obligation to perform or continue to perform these procedures, and these procedures may be discontinued at any
time. We will not have any responsibility for the performance by DTC or its direct or indirect participants under the rules and procedures
governing DTC.

Because DTC can act only on behalf of direct participants, who in turn act only on behalf of direct or indirect participants, and certain banks,
trust companies and other persons approved by it, the ability of a beneficial owner of notes to pledge the notes to persons or entities that do not
participate in the DTC system may be limited due to the unavailability of physical certificates for the notes.

DTC has advised us that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a registered holder of any securities under the Indenture only at the
direction of one or more participants to whose accounts with DTC the notes are credited.

The information in this section concerning DTC and its book-entry system has been obtained from sources that we believe to be accurate, but we
assume no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Clearstream and Euroclear will hold interests on behalf of their participants through customers securities accounts in Clearstream s and
Euroclear s names on the books of their respective depositaries, which in turn will hold interests in customers securities accounts in the
depositaries names on the books of DTC. At the present time, Citibank, N.A. acts as U.S. depositary for Clearstream and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. acts as U.S. depositary for Euroclear (the U.S. Depositaries ). Beneficial interests in the global securities of a series will be held in
denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof.

Clearstream holds securities for its participating organizations ( Clearstream Participants ) and facilitates the clearance and settlement of
securities transactions between Clearstream Participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of Clearstream Participants, thereby
eliminating the need for physical movement of certificates. Clearstream provides to Clearstream Participants, among other things, services for
safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of internationally traded securities and securities lending and borrowing. Clearstream
interfaces with domestic markets in several countries.

Clearstream is registered as a bank in Luxembourg, and as such is subject to regulation by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
and the Banque Centrale du Luxembourg, which supervise and oversee the activities of Luxembourg banks. Clearstream Participants are
world-wide financial institutions including underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations, and
may include the underwriters or their affiliates. Indirect access to
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Clearstream is available to other institutions that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Clearstream Participant. Clearstream
has established an electronic bridge with Euroclear as the operator of the Euroclear System (the Euroclear Operator ) in Brussels to facilitate
settlement of trades between Clearstream and the Euroclear Operator.

Distributions with respect to the notes of a series held beneficially through Clearstream will be credited to cash accounts of Clearstream
Participants in accordance with its rules and procedures, to the extent received by the U.S. Depositary for Clearstream.

Euroclear holds securities and book-entry interests in securities for participating organizations ( Euroclear Participants ) and facilitates the
clearance and settlement of securities transactions between Euroclear Participants, and between Euroclear Participants and participants of certain
other securities intermediaries through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of such participants or other securities intermediaries.
Euroclear provides Euroclear Participants, among other things, with safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement, securities lending and
borrowing, and related services. Euroclear Participants are investment banks, securities brokers and dealers, banks, central banks, supranationals,
custodians, investment managers, corporations, trust companies and certain other organizations, and may include the underwriters or their
affiliates. Non-participants in Euroclear may hold and transfer beneficial interests in a global security through accounts with a Euroclear
Participant or any other securities intermediary that holds a book-entry interest in a global security through one or more securities intermediaries
standing between such other securities intermediary and Euroclear.

Securities clearance accounts and cash accounts with the Euroclear Operator are governed by the Terms and Conditions Governing Use of
Euroclear and the related Operating Procedures of the Euroclear System, and applicable Belgian law (collectively, the Terms and Conditions ).
The Terms and Conditions govern transfers of securities and cash within Euroclear, withdrawals of securities and cash from Euroclear and
receipts of payments with respect to securities in Euroclear. All securities in Euroclear are held on a fungible basis without attribution of specific
certificates to specific securities clearance accounts. The Euroclear Operator acts under the Terms and Conditions only on behalf of Euroclear
Participants, and has no record of or relationship with persons holding through Euroclear Participants.

Distributions with respect to notes of a series held beneficially through Euroclear will be credited to the cash accounts of Euroclear Participants
in accordance with the Terms and Conditions, to the extent received by the U.S. Depositary for Euroclear.

Transfers between Euroclear Participants and Clearstream Participants will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with their respective
rules and operating procedures.

Cross-market transfers between DTC s participating organizations ( DTC Participants ), on the one hand, and Euroclear Participants or
Clearstream Participants, on the other hand, will be effected through DTC in accordance with DTC s rules on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream,
as the case may be, by its U.S. Depositary; however, such cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to Euroclear or
Clearstream, as the case may be, by the counterparty in such system in accordance with the rules and procedures and within the established
deadlines (European time) of such system. Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, will, if the transaction meets its settlement

requirements, deliver instructions to its U.S. Depositary to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving interests

in the global security in DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance with normal procedures for same-day fund settlement applicable
to DTC. Euroclear Participants and Clearstream Participants may not deliver instructions directly to their respective U.S. Depositaries.
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Due to time zone differences, the securities accounts of a Euroclear Participant or Clearstream Participant purchasing an interest in a global
security from a DTC Participant in DTC will be credited, and any such crediting will be reported to the relevant Euroclear Participant or
Clearstream Participant, during the securities settlement processing day (which must be a business day for Euroclear or Clearstream)
immediately following the settlement date of DTC. Cash received in Euroclear or Clearstream as a result of sales of interests in a global security
related to a series of notes by or through a Euroclear Participant or Clearstream Participant to a DTC Participant will be received with value on
the settlement date of DTC but will be available in the relevant Euroclear or Clearstream cash account only as of the business day for Euroclear
or Clearstream following DTC s settlement date.

The information in this section concerning Euroclear and Clearstream and their book-entry systems has been obtained from sources that we
believe to be reliable, but we take no responsibility for the accuracy of that information.

None of us, any of the underwriters or the trustee will have any responsibility for the performance by Euroclear or Clearstream or their
respective participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

Although DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfers of securities
among participants of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such
procedures and they may discontinue the procedures at any time.
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UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAX CONSEQUENCES TO HOLDERS OF NOTES

The following summary describes the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to you of the purchase, beneficial ownership and
disposition of notes as of the date hereof. This summary applies only to holders that purchase notes in the initial offering at their issue price (i.e.,
the first price at which a substantial amount of notes is sold to investors) and that hold the notes as capital assets for tax purposes. This summary
does not apply to you if you are a member of a class of holders subject to special rules, such as:

a dealer in securities;

a trader in securities that elects to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for your securities holdings;

a bank;

an insurance company;

a tax-exempt organization;

a person that owns notes that are a hedge or that are hedged against interest rate risks;

a person that owns notes as part of a straddle or conversion transaction for tax purposes;

a person that purchases or sells notes as part of a wash sale for tax purposes;

a person subject to alternative minimum tax;

a U.S. holder (as defined below) whose functional currency for tax purposes is not the U.S. dollar; or

a U.S. expatriate, controlled foreign corporation, or passive foreign investment company.
This summary is based upon provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code ), and regulations, rulings and judicial
decisions as of the date hereof. Those authorities may be changed, perhaps retroactively, or subject to differing interpretations, so as to result in
U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those summarized below.

If an entity classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds our notes, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend
upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. If you are a partner of a partnership holding notes, you should consult your tax
advisor.

If you are considering the purchase of notes, you should consult your own tax advisor concerning the particular U.S. federal income and estate
tax consequences to you of the purchase, beneficial ownership and disposition of notes, as well as the consequences to you arising under the
laws of any other taxing jurisdiction, including any state, local or non-U.S. tax consequences.
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Please consult your own tax advisor concerning the consequences of owning these notes in your particular circumstances under the Internal
Revenue Code and the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

For purposes of this summary, a U.S. holder means a beneficial owner of a note that is any of the following for U.S. federal income tax
purposes:

a citizen or resident of the United States;

a corporation (or other entity classified as a corporation) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state
thereof, or the District of Columbia;

S-23

Table of Contents

39



Edgar Filing: SUNTRUST BANKS INC - Form 424B2

Table of Conten

an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

a trust if (1) its administration is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more U.S. persons
have the authority to control all of its substantial decisions, or (2) it has a valid election in effect under applicable United States
Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

A non-U.S. holder means a beneficial owner of a note that is not a U.S. holder and not a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

U.S. Holders
Payments of Interest

In general, you must report interest on the notes as ordinary income at the time it is paid or accrued, in accordance with your regular method of
accounting for tax purposes.

Sale, Exchange, Retirement or Other Disposition of the Notes

On the sale, exchange, retirement or other taxable disposition of a note:

You will recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the amount realized by you on the sale, exchange,
retirement or other disposition (except to the extent the amount is attributable to accrued interest not previously included in income,
which will be taxable as ordinary income) and (ii) your adjusted tax basis in the note.

Your gain or loss will generally be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if you held the note for more than
one year at the time of the sale, exchange, retirement or other disposition. Long-term capital gains recognized by non-corporate U.S.
holders generally are taxed at reduced rates. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to significant limitations.

Additional Tax on Net Investment Income

A U.S. holder that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, generally will

be subject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (1) the U.S. holder s net investment income (or undistributed net investment income in the case of an
estate or trust) for the relevant taxable year and (2) the excess of the U.S. holder s modified adjusted gross income for the taxable year over a
certain threshold (which in the case of individuals will be between $125,000 and $250,000, depending on the individual s tax return filing status).
If you are a non-corporate U.S. holder, your net investment income will generally include any income or gain recognized with respect to your
notes, unless the income or gain is derived in the ordinary course of the conduct of your trade or business (other than a trade or business that
consists of certain passive or trading activities). If you are a U.S. holder that is an individual, estate or trust, you are urged to consult your tax
advisor regarding the applicability of this additional tax to your income and gains in respect of your investment in the notes.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Generally, if you are a U.S. holder (other than an exempt recipient), payments of principal and interest made on a note will be subject to
information reporting. In addition, you may be subject to a backup withholding tax on those payments if you fail to provide your accurate
taxpayer identification number to us or our paying agent in the manner required, are notified by the Internal Revenue Service

S-24

Table of Contents 40



Edgar Filing: SUNTRUST BANKS INC - Form 424B2

Table of Conten

(the RS ) that you have failed to report all interest and dividends required to be shown on your U.S. federal income tax return, or otherwise
fail to comply with applicable backup withholding tax rules. You may also be subject to information reporting and backup withholding tax with
respect to the proceeds from a sale, exchange, retirement or other taxable disposition of a note. Any amounts withheld from payments to you
under the backup withholding tax rules will be allowed as a credit against your U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle you to a refund,
provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. We will not pay any additional amounts if any withholding tax is imposed in
respect of your notes.

Non-U.S. Holders
U.S. Federal Withholding Tax

Subject to the discussion below under  Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, if you are a non-U.S. holder, payments of principal and stated
interest on a note will not be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax, provided that:

you do not actually (or constructively) own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our voting stock within
the meaning of the Code and applicable United States Treasury regulations;

you are not a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us through stock ownership;

the interest is not effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S. trade or business; and

either (a) you provide your name and address on an IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable form), and certify, under
penalties of perjury, that you are not a U.S. person or (b) you hold your notes through certain foreign intermediaries and satisfy the
certification requirements of applicable United States Treasury regulations.

Special certification and other rules apply to certain non-U.S. holders that are entities rather than individuals.

If you cannot satisfy the requirements described above, payments of interest made to you will be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a
30% rate, unless you provide us or our paying agent with a properly executed (1) IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable form)
claiming an exemption from or reduction in withholding under the benefit of an applicable tax treaty or (2) IRS Form W-8ECI (or other
applicable form) stating that interest paid on a note is not subject to withholding tax because it is effectively connected with your conduct of a
trade or business in the United States (as discussed below under ~ U.S. Federal Income Tax ). We will not pay any additional amounts if any
withholding tax is imposed in respect of your notes.

U.S. Federal Income Tax

If you are engaged in a trade or business in the United States and interest on the notes is effectively connected with the conduct of that trade or
business (and the interest is attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by you in the United States if that is required by an applicable
income tax treaty as a condition for subjecting you to U.S. tax on a net income basis), you will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on that
interest on a net income basis (although exempt from the 30% withholding tax, provided you comply with certain certification and disclosure
requirements discussed above in ~ U.S. Federal Withholding Tax ) in the same manner as if you were a U.S. holder. In addition, if you are a
foreign corporation, you may be subject to a branch profits tax equal to 30% (or lower applicable treaty rate) of any effectively connected
interest.
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Subject to the discussion below under  Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, any gain realized on the sale, exchange, retirement or other taxable
disposition of a note generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax unless:

the gain is effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States (and, if applicable, attributable to a
permanent establishment maintained by you in the United States), in which case if you are a foreign corporation the branch profits
tax described above may also apply, or

you are an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of that disposition, and certain
other conditions are met.
U.S. Federal Estate Tax

If you are an individual who at death is not a U.S. citizen or resident (as specially defined for U.S. federal estate tax purposes), your estate will
not be subject to U.S. federal estate tax on notes beneficially owned by you at the time of your death, provided that (1) you do not actually (or
constructively) own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our voting stock within the meaning of the Code and
applicable United States Treasury regulations, and (2) interest on those notes would not have been, if received at the time of your death,
effectively connected with the conduct by you of a trade or business in the United States.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

The amount of interest paid to you, and the amount of any tax withheld with respect to that interest, must be reported annually to the IRS and
you. Copies of the information returns reporting the amount of interest paid to you and the amount of any tax withheld may also be made
available to the tax authorities in the country in which you reside under the provisions of an applicable income tax treaty.

In general, you will not be subject to backup withholding with respect to payments of principal and interest on a note, provided that the payor
does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person, as defined under the Code, and the certification
requirements described in the last bullet point under ~ U.S. Federal Withholding Tax above have been met.

In general, you will not be subject to information reporting and backup withholding with respect to the proceeds of the sale of a note within the
United States or conducted through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries, if (i) the certification requirements described above have been
met and the payor does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person, as defined under the Code, or (ii) you
otherwise establish an exemption.

Any amounts withheld from payments to you under the backup withholding tax rules will be allowed as a credit against your U.S. federal
income tax liability and may entitle you to a refund, provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. We will not pay any
additional amounts if any withholding tax is imposed in respect of your notes.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (commonly referred to as FATCA ) generally will impose a 30% withholding tax (i) on interest paid on a
note and (ii) gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of a note that occurs after December 31, 2018, in each case if the note is held by or
through:

certain foreign financial institutions (including investment funds), unless the institution otherwise qualifies for an exemption or
enters into an agreement with the U.S. Treasury (i) to collect and report, on an annual basis, information with respect to accounts in
the institution
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held by certain U.S. persons and by certain non-U.S. entities that are wholly or partially owned by U.S. persons, and (ii) to withhold
on certain payments; or

a non-financial non-U.S. entity, unless the entity (i) either certifies to the applicable withholding agent or the IRS that the entity does
not have any substantial United States owners or provides certain information regarding the entity s substantial United States owners
or (ii) otherwise establishes an exemption from such withholding tax.
The rules described above may be modified by an intergovernmental agreement entered into between the United States and an applicable foreign
country, or by future Treasury regulations or other guidance. We will not pay any additional amounts if any withholding tax is imposed under
FATCA in respect of your notes. Non-U.S. holders are encouraged to consult their tax advisors regarding the possible implications of these rules
on their investment in the notes.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT

This section is specifically relevant to you if you propose to invest in the notes on behalf of an employee benefit plan which is subject to the U.S.
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ( ERISA ), or a plan or individual retirement account or other arrangement which
is subject to Section 4975 of the Code or on behalf of any other entity the assets of which are plan assets under ERISA (individually a Plan ). If
you are proposing to invest in the notes on behalf of a Plan, you should consult your legal counsel before making such investment. This section

also may be relevant to you if you are proposing to invest in the notes on behalf of an employee benefit plan or other arrangement which is

subject to laws which are similar to ERISA and/or the Code ( Similar Laws ), (individually, a Non-ERISA Arrangement ) in which event you also
should consult your legal counsel before making such an investment.

If you propose to invest in the notes on behalf of a Plan, if applicable, you should consider such investment in light of the fiduciary standards of
ERISA as applicable to the Plan s particular circumstances before authorizing or making an investment in the notes. Accordingly, among other
factors, you should consider whether the investment would satisfy the prudence and diversification requirements of ERISA, would meet the

Plan s liquidity requirements and would be consistent with the documents governing the Plan, as well as whether the investment could constitute
a prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code.

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit a Plan from engaging in specified transactions involving plan assets with persons
who are parties in interest under ERISA or disqualified persons under the Code with respect to such Plan. SunTrust, the registrar and paying
agent or any of their respective affiliates may be considered a party in interest or disqualified person with respect to a Plan to the extent any of
such entities or future affiliates are engaged in providing any services to such Plan. Thus, there is a risk that an investment in the notes by a Plan
could constitute a violation of those prohibited transaction rules and therefore could result under ERISA in a claim against you for a breach of
fiduciary duty and other liabilities and could result under the Code in an excise tax assessment and other liabilities for us, or another entity listed
above, unless in either case the investment comes under an applicable statutory or administrative prohibited transaction exemption or there is
some other basis on which the purchase, holding and disposition of the notes will not constitute a non-exempt prohibited transaction under
ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code and is not prohibited under applicable Similar Laws.

For example, the U.S. Department of Labor has issued five administrative prohibited transaction class exemptions ( PTCEs ) that may provide an
exemption from some direct or indirect prohibited transactions resulting from investing in the notes. These class exemptions are:

PTCE 96-23, as amended, for specified transactions effected by in-house asset managers;

PTCE 95-60, as amended, for specified transactions involving insurance company general accounts;

PTCE 91-38, as amended, for specified transactions involving bank collective investment funds;

PTCE 90-1, for specified transactions involving insurance company separate accounts; and

PTCE 84-14, as amended, for specified transactions effected by independent qualified professional asset managers.
In addition, ERISA Section 408(b)(17) and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code may provide a limited exemption for the purchase and sale of the
notes and related lending transactions, provided that

S-28

Table of Contents 44



Edgar Filing: SUNTRUST BANKS INC - Form 424B2

Table of Conten

neither the issuer of the notes nor any of its affiliates have or exercise any discretionary authority or control or render any investment advice with
respect to the assets of the Plan involved in the transaction and provided further that the Plan pays no more, and receives no less, than adequate
consideration in connection with the transaction (the so-called service provider exemption ). There can be no assurance, however, that any of
these statutory or class exemptions will be available with respect to transactions involving the notes.

We also note that employee benefit plans that are governmental plans, as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA, church plans, as defined in
Section 3(33) of ERISA, and foreign plans, as described in Section 4(b)(4) of ERISA, are not subject to the requirements of ERISA or

Section 4975 of the Code, but these plans and other plan investors may be subject to Similar Laws that contain fiduciary and prohibited
transaction provisions. Based on the foregoing, the notes may not be purchased, held or disposed of by any Plan, any Non-ERISA Arrangement,
any entity whose underlying assets include plan assets by reason of any Plan s investment in the entity (a plan asset entity ) or any person
investing plan assets of any Plan, unless the purchaser or holder is eligible for an applicable statutory or administrative prohibited transaction
exemption, or there is some other basis on which the purchase, holding and disposition of the notes will not constitute a non-exempt prohibited
transaction under ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code and it is not prohibited under applicable Similar Laws.

Any purchaser or holder of the notes will be deemed to have represented, in its coporate and fiduciary capacity, by its purchase and holding that
either:

it is not a Plan or Non-ERISA arrangement, or a plan asset entity and is not purchasing the notes on behalf of or with plan assets of
any such Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement; or

its acquisition and holding of the notes will not (based on advice of counsel) result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under
Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code and is not prohibited under applicable Similar Law.
The notes are contractual financial instruments. The financial exposure provided by the notes is not a substitute or proxy for, and is not intended
as a substitute or proxy for, individualized investment management or advice for the benefit of any purchaser or holder of the notes. The notes
have not been designed and will not be administered in a manner intended to reflect the individualized needs and objectives of any purchaser or
holder of the notes.

Each purchaser or holder of any notes will also be deemed to acknowledge and agree that:

(1)  The purchaser or holder or its fiduciary has made and shall make all investment decisions for the purchaser or holder, will pay no
more than adequate consideration in connection with the purchaser s acquisition of or investment in the notes and the purchaser or
holder has not relied and shall not rely in any way upon us or our affiliates to act as a fiduciary or adviser of the purchaser or holder
with respect to (A) the design and terms of the notes, (B) the purchaser or holder s investment in the notes, or (C) the exercise of, or
failure to exercise, any rights we have under or with respect to the notes;

(i) We and our affiliates are not a fiduciary (within the meaning of ERISA or any Similar Laws) with respect to the purchaser in
connection with the purchaser s acquisition of or investment in the notes and have acted and will act solely for our own account in
connection with all transactions relating to the notes;

(iii) Our interests are adverse to the interests of the purchaser or holder; and

(iv) Neither we nor any of our affiliates is a fiduciary or adviser of the purchaser or holder in connection with any such assets, positions
or transactions, and any information that we or any of our affiliates may provide is not intended to be impartial investment advice.
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Due to the complexity of the prohibited transaction rules and the penalties that may be imposed upon persons involved in non-exempt prohibited
transactions, it is particularly important that fiduciaries or other persons considering purchasing the notes on behalf of, or with plan assets of, any
Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement, consult with their counsel regarding the potential consequences of the investment and whether a prohibited
transaction exemption, or similar relief under Similar Laws, is available. Finally, if you propose to invest in the notes on behalf of, or with plan
assets of, any Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement, as between you and us, you have the sole and exclusive responsibility for ensuring that the
investment complies with the fiduciary responsibility rules of ERISA and does not violate the prohibited transaction rules of ERISA or the Code

(or in the case of a Non-ERISA Arrangement, any Similar Laws). The sale of any notes to any Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement is in no respect

a representation by us or any of our affiliates or representatives that such an investment is appropriate for, or meets all relevant legal

requirements with respect to investments by, Plans or Non-ERISA Arrangements generally or any particular Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement.
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UNDERWRITING (CONFLICTS OF INTEREST)

We are offering the notes described in this prospectus supplement through a number of underwriters. We have entered into an underwriting
agreement with the underwriters listed below for whom SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC are acting as representatives. Subject to the terms and conditions of the underwriting agreement,
we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase, at the public offering price less the
underwriting discounts and commissions set forth on the cover page of this prospectus supplement, the principal amount of notes indicated in the
following table.

Principal amount of

notes to be
Underwriters purchased
SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. $ 212,500,000
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. 212,500,000
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. 212,500,000
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC 212,500,000
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC 50,000,000
RBC Capital Markets, LLC 25,000,000
UBS Securities LLC 25,000,000
Lebenthal & Co., LLC 25,000,000
Mischler Financial Group, Inc. 25,000,000
Total $  1,000,000,000

The underwriters are obligated to take and pay for all of the notes if any notes are taken. The underwriting agreement also provides that if an
underwriter defaults, the purchase commitments of non-defaulting underwriters may also be increased or the offering may be terminated. The
offering of the notes by the underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters right to reject any order in whole or
in part.

The underwriters propose to offer the notes directly to the public at the public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus
supplement and may offer the notes to certain dealers at a price that represents a selling concession not in excess of 0.15% of the principal
amount of the notes. Any such dealers may resell notes to certain other brokers and dealers at a price that represents a selling concession not in
excess of 0.075% of the principal amount of the notes. After the initial offering, the offering price and other selling terms may from time to time
be varied by the underwriters.

We have agreed that we will not offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any of our debt securities or warrants to purchase or
otherwise acquire our debt securities that are substantially similar to the notes for a period of 30 days from the date of this prospectus
supplement with the exception of the notes, commercial paper issued in the ordinary course of business or securities or warrants permitted with
the prior written consent of the representatives.

The aggregate proceeds to us are set forth on the cover page hereof before deducting our expenses in offering the notes. We estimate that we will
spend approximately $1.2 million for expenses, excluding underwriting commissions and discounts, allocable to the offering.

We have agreed to indemnify the several underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to
payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect thereof.
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The notes are offered for sale only in those jurisdictions in the United States where it is legal to make such offers. The underwriters intend to
offer the notes for sale primarily in the United States either directly or through affiliates or other dealers acting as selling agents. The
underwriters may also offer the notes for sale outside the United States either directly or through affiliates or other dealers acting as selling
agents.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the notes. We have been advised by the underwriters that they intend to make a market
in the notes but they are not obligated to do so and may discontinue any market-making activities at any time without notice. No assurance can
be given as to the liquidity of, or the trading markets for, the notes.

In connection with the offering, the underwriters may engage in transactions that stabilize the market price of the notes. Such transactions may
consist of bids or purchases to peg, fix or maintain the price of the notes. If the underwriters create a short position in the notes in connection
with the offering (i.e., if they sell more notes than are listed on the cover page of this prospectus supplement), the underwriters may reduce that
short position by purchasing notes in the open market. Purchases of a security to stabilize the price or to reduce a short position may cause the
price of the security to be higher than it might be in the absence of these purchases.

The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the
underwriting discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased notes sold by or for the account of such underwriter in
stabilizing or short covering transactions.

Neither we nor the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions
described above may have on the price of the notes. In addition, neither we nor the underwriters make any representation that the underwriters
will engage in these transactions or that these transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice. The underwriters and their
respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include sales and trading, commercial and
investment banking, advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, market making, brokerage and other
financial and non-financial activities and services. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have provided, and may in the future
provide, a variety of these services to us and to persons and entities with relationships with us, for which they received or will receive customary
fees and expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates, officers, directors and employees may
purchase, sell or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade securities, derivatives, loans, commodities, currencies, credit default swaps
and other financial instruments for their own account and for the accounts of their customers, and such investment and trading activities may
involve or relate to assets, securities and/or instruments of us (directly, as collateral securing other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and
entities with relationships with us, including the 2016 Notes to be redeemed using the net proceeds of this offering. To the extent the
underwriters or their affiliates own any of the 2016 Notes being redeemed, they will receive a portion of the net proceeds of this offering. The
underwriters and their respective affiliates may also communicate independent investment recommendations, market color or trading ideas
and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such assets, securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or
recommend to clients that they should acquire, long and/or short positions in such assets, securities and instruments.
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Canada

The notes may be sold in Canada only to purchasers purchasing, or deemed to be purchasing, as principal that are accredited investors, as
defined in National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions or subsection 73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), and are permitted clients, as
defined in National Instrument 31-103 Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations. Any resale of the notes
must be made in accordance with an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the prospectus requirements of applicable securities laws.

Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with remedies for rescission or damages if this
offering memorandum (including any amendment thereto) contains a misrepresentation, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are
exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser s province or territory. The purchaser
should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser s province or territory for particulars of these rights or
consult with a legal advisor.

Pursuant to section 3A.3 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting Conflicts (NI 33-105), the underwriters are not required to comply with
the disclosure requirements of NI 33-105 regarding underwriter conflicts of interest in connection with this offering.

European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member
State ), each underwriter has represented and agreed that with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is
implemented in that Relevant Member State (the Relevant Implementation Date ) it has not made and will not make an offer of notes to the
public in that Relevant Member State prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the notes which has been approved by the competent
authority in that Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent
authority in that Relevant Member State, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, except that it may, with effect from and including the
Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of notes to the public in that Relevant Member State at any time:

(a) tolegal entities which are authorised or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so authorised or regulated, whose
corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;

(b) to any legal entity which has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250 employees during the last financial year; (2) a total
balance sheet of more than 43,000,000 and (3) an annual net turnover of more than 50,000,000, as shown in its last annual or
consolidated accounts;

(c) to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive) subject to obtaining
the prior consent of the representatives for any such offer; or

(d) in any other circumstances which do not require the publication by the issuer of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus
Directive.
For the purposes of this provision, the expression an offer of notes to the public in relation to any notes in any Relevant Member State means the
communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the notes to be offered so as to enable an
investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the notes, as the same may be varied in that Relevant Member State by any measure implementing
the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State and the expression Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any
relevant implementing measure in each Relevant Member State.
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Each underwriter has represented and agreed that:

(a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or
inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the
issue or sale of the notes in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the issuer; and

(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the
notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.
United Kingdom

In the United Kingdom, this document is being distributed only to, and is directed only at, and any offer subsequently made may only be

directed at persons who are qualified investors (as defined in the Prospectus Directive) (i) who have professional experience in matters relating

to investments falling within Article 19 (5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005, as amended (the
Order ) and/or (ii) who are high net worth companies (or persons to whom it may otherwise be lawfully communicated) falling within Article

49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order (all such persons together being referred to as relevant persons ). This document must not be acted on or relied on in

the United Kingdom by persons who are not relevant persons. In the United Kingdom, any investment or investment activity to which this

document relates is only available to, and will be engaged in with, relevant persons.

Hong Kong

The notes may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public
within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to professional investors within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not
result in the document being a prospectus within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no
advertisement, invitation or document relating to the notes may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in
each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in
Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to notes which are or are intended to be disposed
of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to professional investors within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

Singapore

This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus and any other
document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the notes may not be circulated or
distributed, nor may the notes be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or
indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of
Singapore (the SFA ), (ii) to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions, specified in
Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.
Where the notes are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 by a relevant person which is: (a) a corporation (which is not an accredited
investor) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of
whom is an accredited investor; or (b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each
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beneficiary is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries rights and
interest in that trust shall not be transferable for 6 months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the notes under Section 275 except:
(1) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in
accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA; (2) where no consideration is given for the transfer; or (3) by operation of
law.

Japan

The securities have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan (the Financial Instruments
and Exchange Law ) and each underwriter has agreed that it will not offer or sell any securities, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the
benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity
organized under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan, except pursuant
to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law and any
other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

Conflicts of Interest

SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., our subsidiary, is participating in this offering of notes as an underwriter. Accordingly, this offering is being
conducted in compliance with the provisions of FINRA Rule 5121. SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. is not permitted to sell the notes in this
offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the prior specific written approval of the customer to which the
account relates.

In the future, SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. or our other affiliates may repurchase and resell the notes in market-making transactions, with
resales being made at prices related to prevailing market prices at the time of the resale or at negotiated prices.

To the extent the underwriters or their affiliates own any of the 2016 Notes to be redeemed using the net proceeds of this offering, they will
receive a portion of the net proceeds of this offering.
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VALIDITY OF THE SECURITIES

The validity of the notes offered hereby will be passed upon for us by King & Spalding LLP, Atlanta, Georgia, and for the underwriters by
Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, New York, New York. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP will rely as to matters of Georgia law upon the opinions of King &
Spalding LLP and Raymond D. Fortin, Esq., Corporate Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of SunTrust. As of
December 31, 2015, Mr. Fortin owned 100,018 shares of our common stock, inclusive of 8,839 shares of restricted stock or restricted stock units
that are subject to forfeiture, which he is deemed to beneficially own in accordance with Rule 13d-3. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP regularly
performs legal services for SunTrust and its affiliates.

EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, as set forth in their reports, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and elsewhere in the
registration statement. Our financial statements and our management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2015 are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s reports, given on their authority as experts in
accounting and auditing.
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PROSPECTUS

SunTrust Banks, Inc.

Senior Debt Securities
Subordinated Debt Securities
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares
Common Stock
Warrants
Purchase Contracts

Units

The securities listed above may be offered and sold by us or may be offered and sold, from time to time, by one or
more selling securityholders to be identified in the future. We will provide the specific terms of these securities in
supplements to this prospectus. We may offer and sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, dealers
and agents, directly to purchasers or through a combination of these methods, on a continuous or delayed basis from
time to time. You should read this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement carefully before you invest in
the securities described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

This prospectus may not be used to sell securities unless accompanied by the applicable prospectus supplement.
These securities will be our equity securities or unsecured obligations, will not be savings accounts, deposits or
other obligations of any bank or savings association, and will not be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, the bank insurance fund or any other governmental agency or instrumentality.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or

disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation
to the contrary is a criminal offense.
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Unless the context requires otherwise, references to we, us, our and similar terms are to SunTrust Banks, Inc. and its
subsidiaries.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is a part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC )
using a shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration statement, we may sell, either separately or together,
senior debt securities, subordinated debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares representing interests in

preferred stock, common stock, warrants, purchase contracts and units in one or more offerings.

Each time we sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement, pricing supplement, index supplement, product
supplement or other type of offering document or supplement (together referred to herein as a prospectus supplement )
that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add,

update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read this prospectus and the applicable
prospectus supplement together with the additional information described under the heading Where You Can Find
More Information.

The registration statement that contains this prospectus, including the exhibits to the registration statement, contains
additional information about us and the securities offered under this prospectus. That registration statement can be
read at the SEC web site or at the SEC offices mentioned under the heading Where You Can Find More Information.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings
are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC web site at http://www.sec.gov. To receive copies of public
records not posted to the SEC s web site at prescribed rates, you may complete an online form at http://www.sec.gov,
send a fax to (202) 772-9337 or submit a written request to the SEC, Office of FOIA/PA Operations, 100 F Street,
N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information. Our SEC filings are
also available at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange. For further information on obtaining copies of our
public filings at the New York Stock Exchange, you should call 212-656-3000.
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The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose
important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is
considered to be a part of this prospectus, and later information that we file with the SEC will automatically update
and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the following documents listed
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below and any future filings made with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act ) (other than, in each case, information that is deemed not to have been
filed in accordance with SEC rules), until we sell all the securities offered by this prospectus:

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014;

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and June 30, 2015;

Current Reports on Form 8-K filed March 11, 2015, April 29, 2015 and August 13, 2015;

the description of SunTrust s Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, no par value and $100,000 liquidation
preference per share, contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A, under Section 12(b) of the
Exchange Act, filed September 12, 2006, including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of
updating such description; and

the description of SunTrust s Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series E, no par value and $100,000 liquidation
preference per share, contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A, under Section 12(b) of the
Exchange Act, filed December 20, 2012, including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of
updating such description; and

the description of SunTrust s common stock, $1.00 par value per share, contained in our Registration
Statement on Form 8-A, under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act, filed March 5, 2003, including any
amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.
You may request a copy of these filings (other than an exhibit to a filing unless that exhibit is specifically incorporated
by reference into that filing), at no cost, by writing or calling us at the following address:

SunTrust Banks, Inc.
303 Peachtree Street, NE
Atlanta, Georgia 30308

Telephone: 404-658-4879

Attn: Corporate Secretary
You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and the
applicable prospectus supplement. We have not authorized anyone else to provide you with additional or
different information. We may only use this prospectus to sell securities if it is accompanied by a prospectus
supplement. We are only offering these securities in jurisdictions where the offer is permitted. You should not

assume that the information in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement or any document
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incorporated by reference is accurate as of any date other than the dates of the applicable documents.
USE OF PROCEEDS
We intend to use the net proceeds from the sales of securities as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.
VALIDITY OF THE SECURITIES
Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the validity of the securities may be passed upon

for us by our counsel, King & Spalding LLP, Atlanta, Georgia. Any underwriters will be represented by their own
legal counsel.
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EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial
statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, as set forth in their reports, which are
incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in this registration statement. Our consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2014 are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s reports, given
on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.
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SunTrust Banks, Inc.
$1,000,000,000

2.90% Senior Notes due 2021

Joint Bookrunners

SunTrust Robinson Humphrey Citigroup Deutsche Bank Securities Morgan Stanley
Co-Managers

J.P. Morgan RBC Capital Markets UBS Investment Bank Lebenthal Capital Mischler Financial
Markets Group, Inc.

;border-bottom: 1pt solid #000000 ;border-right:1pt none #D9DIDY ;padding:Opt;">

271,937

Balance at September 30, 2016

$
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102,843,309

1,010

$

2,233,242

$

1,054,037

$

3,288,289
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(See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements)
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Air Lease Corporation and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Depreciation of flight equipment

Stock-based compensation

Deferred taxes

Amortization of debt discounts and issuance costs
Gain on aircraft sales, trading and other activity
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Other assets

Accrued interest and other payables

Rentals received in advance

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities

Acquisition of flight equipment under operating lease
Payments for deposits on flight equipment purchases
Proceeds from aircraft sales, trading and other activity
Acquisition of furnishings, equipment and other assets
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of options
Cash dividends paid

Tax withholdings on stock-based compensation

Net change in unsecured revolving facilities
Proceeds from debt financings

Payments in reduction of debt financings

Net change in restricted cash

Debt issuance costs

Security deposits and maintenance reserve receipts
Security deposits and maintenance reserve disbursements
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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Nine Months Ended

September 30,

2016 2015

(unaudited)

$ 277,937 $ 172,492
333,962 291,460
12,342 12,372
152,898 95,233
22,630 22,782
(47,687) (29,061)
(24,305) 18,384
23,769 (5,857)
9,933 8,753
761,479 586,558
(1,436,679) (1,697,742)
(641,737) (482,798)
649,210 691,458
(165,378) (189,493)
(1,594,584) (1,678,575)
— 40
(15,413) (12,302)
(5,890) (5,302)
298,000 (75,000)
1,526,001 1,217,384
(1,000,559) (293,736)
(534) (3,231)
(4,362) (4,188)
153,151 150,318
(47,142) (45,063)
903,252 928,920
70,147 (163,097)
156,675 282,819

$ 226,822 $ 119,722
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Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the period for interest, including capitalized interest of

$30,137 and $30,449 at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively $ 224,420
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Activities

Buyer furnished equipment, capitalized interest, deposits on flight equipment

purchases and seller financing applied to acquisition of flight equipment and

other assets applied to payments for deposits on flight equipment purchases $ 642,417
Cash dividends declared, not yet paid $ 5,142

(See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements)

$ 199,745

$ 766,616
$ 4,103

Table of Contents

63



Edgar Filing: SUNTRUST BANKS INC - Form 424B2

Table of Contents

Air Lease Corporation and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Note 1.Company Background and Overview

LR N3

Air Lease Corporation, together with its subsidiaries (the “Company”, “ALC”, “we”, “our” or “us”), is a leading aircraft leasin,
company that was founded by aircraft leasing industry pioneer, Steven F. Udvar-Hazy. We are principally engaged in
purchasing new commercial jet transport aircraft directly from the manufacturers, such as The Boeing Company

(“Boeing”) and Airbus S.A.S. (“Airbus”). As of September 30, 2016, we owned a fleet of 244 aircraft and had 372 aircraft

on order with the manufacturers. In addition to our leasing activities, we sell aircraft from our fleet to leasing

companies, financial services companies and airlines. We also provide fleet management services to investors and

owners of aircraft portfolios for a management fee.

Note 2.Basis of Preparation and Critical Accounting Policies

The Company consolidates financial statements of all entities in which we have a controlling financial interest,
including the accounts of any Variable Interest Entity in which we have a controlling financial interest and for which
we are determined to be the primary beneficiary. All material intercompany balances are eliminated in consolidation.
The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and in accordance
with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the
information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, including only normal,
recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash
flows at September 30, 2016, and for all periods presented. The results of operations for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results expected for the year ending
December 31, 2016. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Initial Direct Costs
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The Company records as period costs those internal and other costs incurred in connection with identifying,
negotiating and delivering aircraft to the Company's lessees. Amounts paid by us to lessees and/or other parties in
connection with originating lease transactions are capitalized as lease incentives and are amortized over the lease term.
Additionally, regarding the extension of leases that contain maintenance reserve provisions, the Company considers
maintenance reserves that were previously recorded as revenue and no longer meet the virtual certainty criteria as a
function of the extended lease term as lease incentives and capitalizes such reserves. The amortization of lease
incentives are recorded as a reduction of lease revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Note 3.Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU")
No. 2016-02 ("ASU 2016-02"), “Leases (Topic 842)”. The amendments in ASU 2016-02 set out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. ASU 2016-02 will be
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 for public entities and is required to be
applied using the modified retrospective transition approach. Early adoption is permitted. We do not believe that the
adoption of the standard will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09 ("ASU 2016-09"), "Compensation-Stock Compensation

(Topic 718)". The amendments in ASU 2016-09 reduce the complexity of accounting for share-based payments and
might increase volatility in reported earnings. ASU 2016-09 will be effective for interim and annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2016 for public entities and is required to be adopted using the cumulative-effect and
prospective approach. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating this guidance to determine the impact
it will have on our financial statements.
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In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15 ("ASU 2016-15"), "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230)". The

amendments in ASU 2016-15 addresses eight classification issues related to the statement of cash flows. ASU

2016-15 will be effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017 for public entities and is

required to be adopted using a retrospective transition method to each period presented. Early adoption is

permitted. We are currently evaluating this guidance to determine the impact it will have on our financial statements.

Note 4.Debt Financing

The Company’s consolidated debt as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are summarized below (in

thousands):

September

30, 2016
Unsecured
Senior notes $ 6,506,343
Revolving credit facility 1,018,000
Term financings 214,734
Convertible senior notes 200,000
Total unsecured debt financing 7,939,077
Secured
Term financings 654,166
Warehouse facility —
Export credit financing 53,238
Total secured debt financing 707,404
Total debt financing 8,046,481
Less: Debt discounts and issuance costs (91,749)
Debt financing, net of discounts and issuance costs $ 8,554,732

December
31, 2015

$ 5,677,769
720,000
292,788
200,000
6,890,557

477,231
372,423
58,229

907,883

7,798,440
(86,019)
$ 7,712,421

The Company’s secured obligations as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are summarized below (dollars

in thousands):

September

30, 2016
Nonrecourse $ 257,386
Recourse 450,018
Total secured debt financing $ 707,404
Number of aircraft pledged as collateral 27
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December

31, 2015

$ 372,423
535,460

$ 907,883
31
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Net book value of aircraft pledged as collateral $ 1,372,615 $ 1,591,350

Senior unsecured notes

As of September 30, 2016, the Company had $6.5 billion in senior unsecured notes outstanding. As of December 31,
2015, the Company had $5.7 billion in senior unsecured notes outstanding.

On August 15, 2016, the Company issued $750.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due
2023 that bear interest at a rate of 3.00%.

On August 2, 2016, the Company issued and sold $100.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.00% Senior
Unsecured Notes, Series A, due 2020 in a private placement that was not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Company also entered into an uncommitted shelf facility by which the Company may request that
certain parties purchase, until August 2, 2020, up to $200.0 million of additional senior unsecured notes of the
Company. The interest rate of such notes will be determined at the time of purchase. The parties to the facility are
under no obligation to purchase such notes.

On April 11, 2016, the Company issued $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due
2021 that bear interest at a rate of 3.375%.
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Unsecured revolving credit facility

On August 8, 2016, we executed a commitment increase to our unsecured revolving facility. This increased the
aggregate facility capacity by $35.0 million to $3.2 billion.

On May 27, 2016, the Company amended and extended its four-year unsecured revolving credit facility whereby the
Company extended the maturity date from May 5, 2019 to May 5, 2020 and increased the total revolving
commitments to approximately $3.1 billion from approximately $2.8 billion. At that time, the unsecured revolving
credit facility was priced at LIBOR plus 1.25% with a 0.25% facility fee, each subject to adjustment based on changes
in the Company’s credit ratings. Lenders hold revolving commitments totaling approximately $2.8 billion that mature
on May 5, 2020, commitments totaling $290.0 million that mature on May 5, 2019, and commitments totaling $65.0
million that mature on May 5, 2018.

Effective October 17, 2016, the pricing of our unsecured revolving credit facility has been further reduced to LIBOR
plus 1.05% with a 0.20% facility fee as a result of the upgraded investment grade corporate credit rating of 'BBB'
obtained from S&P.

The total amount outstanding under our unsecured revolving credit facility was $1.0 billion and $720.0 million as of
September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.

Unsecured term financings

In March 2016, the Company entered into a $100.0 million one-year unsecured term facility bearing interest at a rate
of LIBOR plus 1.00%.

The outstanding balance on our unsecured term facilities as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 was
$214.7 million and $292.8 million, respectively.

Secured term financing
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In June 2016, the availability period for our ability to draw from our warehouse facility expired. The outstanding
drawn balance at the end of the availability period was converted to an amortizing, four-year term loan with an interest
rate of LIBOR plus 2.00%. As of September 30, 2016, the Company's outstanding balance was $257.4 million and
pledged 12 aircraft with a net book value of $450.6 million were pledged as collateral. As of December 31, 2015, the
Company had borrowed $372.4 million under our warehouse facility and pledged 14 aircraft as collateral with a net
book value of $577.6 million.

As of September 30, 2016, the outstanding balance on our secured term facilities, including the converted warehouse
facility, was $654.2 million and we had pledged 25 aircraft as collateral with a net book value of $1.3 billion. The
outstanding balance under our secured term facilities as of September 30, 2016 was comprised of $38.8 million fixed
rate debt and $615.4 million floating rate debt, with interest rates ranging from 4.34% to 5.36% and LIBOR plus
1.15% to LIBOR plus 2.99%, respectively. As of September 30, 2016, the remaining maturities of all secured term
facilities ranged from approximately 0.3 years to approximately 6.8 years.

As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding balance on our secured term facilities was $477.2 million and we had
pledged 15 aircraft as collateral with a net book value of $933.4 million. The outstanding balance under our secured
term facilities as of December 31, 2015 was comprised of $75.1 million fixed rate debt and $402.1 million floating
rate debt, with interest rates ranging from 4.28% to 5.36% and LIBOR plus 1.15% to LIBOR plus 2.99%,
respectively. As of December 31, 2015, the remaining maturities of all secured term facilities ranged from
approximately 0.1 years to approximately 7.5 years.

10

Table of Contents 69



Table of Contents

Maturities

Maturities of debt outstanding as of September 30, 2016 are as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter
Total

$ 93,573
1,412,525
1,466,778
1,073,411
1,557,266
3,042,928

$ 8,646,481
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Note 5.Commitments and Contingencies

As of September 30, 2016 and through November 3, 2016, the Company had commitments to acquire a total of 372
new aircraft scheduled to deliver through 2023 as follows:

Aircraft Type 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total
Airbus A320/A321-200 1 1 — — — — 2
Airbus A320/321neo(1)(2) 1 14 17 27 26 55 140
Airbus A330-800/900neo — — 5 5 5 10 25
Airbus A350-900/1000 — 2 4 2 8 8 24
Boeing 737-800 2 9 — — — — 11
Boeing 737-8/9 MAX — 2 1 19 30 56 118
Boeing 777-300ER 2 2 — — — — 4
Boeing 787-9/10 1 4 7 7 6 20 45
ATR 72-600(3) 3 — — — — — 3
Total 10 34 44 60 75 149 372

(1) Our Airbus A320/321neo aircraft orders include 40 long-range variants.

(2) Airbus has advised us to anticipate several month delays on up to eight Pratt & Whitney powered A320/321neo
aircraft scheduled for delivery in 2017.

(3) We have committed to sell all of our ATR aircraft on order.
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Commitments for the acquisition of these aircraft and other equipment at an estimated aggregate purchase price
(including adjustments for inflation) of approximately $28.8 billion at September 30, 2016 and through November 3,
2016 are as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,

2016 $ 700,749
2017 2,790,354
2018 3,791,575
2019 4,629,955
2020 5,878,157
Thereafter 10,959,387
Total $ 28,750,177

We have made non-refundable deposits on the aircraft for which we have commitments to purchase of $1.2 billion and
$1.1 billion as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, which are subject to manufacturer
performance commitments. If we are unable to satisfy our purchase commitments, we may forfeit our deposits.
Further, we would be subject to breach of contract claims by our lessees and manufacturers.

As of September 30, 2016, the Company had a non-binding commitment to acquire up to five A350-1000 aircraft.
Deliveries of these aircraft are scheduled to commence in 2023 and continue through 2024.

11
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Note 6.Net Earnings Per Share

Basic net earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that would occur if securities or
other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock; however, potential common
equivalent shares are excluded if the effect of including these shares would be anti-dilutive. The Company’s two
classes of common stock, Class A and Class B Non-Voting, have equal rights to dividends and income, and therefore,
basic and diluted earnings per share are the same for each class of common stock. As of September 30, 2016, we did
not have any Class B Non-Voting common stock outstanding.

Diluted net earnings per share takes into account the potential conversion of stock options, restricted stock units, and
warrants using the treasury stock method and convertible notes using the if-converted method. For the three months
ended September 30, 2016, the Company excluded 150,000 shares related to stock options which were potentially
dilutive securities from the computation of diluted earnings per share because including these shares would be
anti-dilutive. For the three months ended September 30, 2015 and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015,
the Company did not have any potentially anti-dilutive securities which would require exclusion from the computation
of dilutive earnings per share. The Company excluded 994,001 and 947,643 shares related to restricted stock units for
which the performance metric had yet to be achieved as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of basic and diluted net income per share (in thousands, except share
and per share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Basic net income per share:
Numerator
Net income $ 93,276 $ 77,042 $ 277,937 $ 172,492
Denominator
Weighted-average common shares
outstanding 102,842,996 102,580,955 102,786,822 102,536,326
Basic net income per share $ 0.91 $ 0.75 $ 2.70 $ 1.68
Diluted net income per share:
Numerator
Net income $ 93,276 $ 77,042 $ 277,937 $ 172,492
Assumed conversion of convertible senior
notes 1,472 1,463 4,382 4,341
Net income plus assumed conversions $ 94,748 $ 78,505 $ 282,319 $ 176,833
Denominator
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Number of shares used in basic computation 102,842,996 102,580,955 102,786,822
Weighted-average effect of dilutive

securities 7,945,917 8,043,005 7,951,067
Number of shares used in per share

computation 110,788,913 110,623,960 110,737,889
Diluted net income per share $ 0.86 $ 0.71 $ 2.55

Note 7.Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring and Non-recurring Basis

102,536,326
8,098,956

110,635,282
$ 1.60

The Company had no assets or liabilities which are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis as of

September 30, 2016 or December 31, 2015.

Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair Value

The fair value of debt financing is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, or on
the current rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities, which would be categorized as a
Level 2 measurement in the fair value hierarchy. The estimated fair value of debt financing as of September 30, 2016
was $8.9 billion compared to a book value of $8.6 billion. The estimated fair value of debt financing as of December

31, 2015 was $7.9 billion compared to a book value of $7.8 billion.

12
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The following financial instruments are not measured at fair value on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2016, but require disclosure of their fair values: cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The
estimated fair value of such instruments at September 30, 2016 approximates their carrying value as reported on the
consolidated balance sheet. The fair value of all these instruments would be categorized as Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Note 8.Stock-based Compensation

On May 7, 2014, the stockholders of the Company approved the Air Lease Corporation 2014 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “2014 Plan”). Upon approval of the 2014 Plan, no new awards may be granted under the Amended and Restated
2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2010 Plan”). As of September 30, 2016, the number of stock options (‘“‘Stock Options™)
and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) authorized under the 2014 Plan is approximately 6,033,703, which includes
1,033,703 shares which were previously reserved for issuance under the 2010 Plan. Stock Options are generally
granted for a term of 10 years and generally vest over a three year period. The Company has issued RSUs with four
different vesting criteria: those RSUs that vest based on the attainment of book value goals, those RSUs that vest
based on the attainment of Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) goals, time based RSUs that vest ratably over a time
period of three years and RSUs that cliff-vest at the end of a one or two year period. The book value RSUs generally
vest ratably over three years, if the performance condition has been met. Book value RSUs for which the performance
metric has not been met are forfeited. The TSR RSUs vest at the end of a three year period. The number of TSR
RSUs that will ultimately vest is based upon the percentile ranking of the Company’s TSR among a peer group. The
number of shares that will ultimately vest will range from 0% to 200% of the RSUs initially granted depending on the
extent to which the TSR metric is achieved.

The Company recorded $4.6 million of stock-based compensation expense related to RSUs for the three months ended
September 30, 2016 and 2015. The Company recorded $12.3 million and $12.4 million of stock-based compensation
expense related to RSUs for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015.

Stock Options

A summary of stock option activity for the nine month period ended September 30, 2016 follows:

Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Term Intrinsic Value
(in
Shares Price (in years) thousands)(1)
Balance at December 31, 2015 3,309,158 $ 20.40 4.50 $ 43287
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Granted — $ — — $ —
Exercised — $ — — $ —
Forfeited/canceled — $ — — $ —
Balance at September 30, 2016 3,309,158 $ 20.40 3.75 $ 27,106
Vested and exercisable as of September 30,

2016 3,309,158 $ 20.40 3.75 $ 27,106

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards
and the closing stock price of our Class A common stock as of the respective date.

The Company’s outstanding stock options fully vested on June 30, 2013 and there were no unrecognized compensation
costs related to outstanding stock options as of September 30, 2016. As a result, there was no stock-based
compensation expense related to Stock Options for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015.

13
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The following table summarizes additional information regarding exercisable and vested stock options at
September 30, 2016:

Stock options exercisable

and Vested
Weighted-
Average
Number of Remaining Life
Range of exercise prices Shares (in years)
$20.00 3,159,158 3.71
$28.80 150,000 4.57
$20.00 - $28.80 3,309,158 3.75

Restricted Stock Units

Compensation cost for stock awards is measured at the grant date based on fair value and recognized over the vesting
period. The fair value of time based and book value RSUs is determined based on the closing market price of the
Company’s Class A common stock on the date of grant, while the fair value of TSR RSUs is determined at the grant
date using a Monte Carlo simulation model. Included in the Monte Carlo simulation model were certain assumptions
regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables, such as expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and
expected dividends. To appropriately value the award, the risk-free interest rate is estimated for the time period from
the valuation date until the vesting date and the historical volatilities were estimated based on a historical timeframe
equal to the time from the valuation date until the end date of the performance period.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2016, the Company granted 612,635 RSUs of which 276,044 are TSR
RSUs. The following table summarizes the activities for our unvested RSUs for the nine months ended September 30,
2016:

Unvested Restricted Stock Units
Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Number of Shares Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2015 993,092 $ 41.62
Granted 612,635 $ 29.54
Vested (455,242) $ 35.80
Forfeited/canceled (20,630) $ 38.45
Unvested at September 30, 2016 1,129,855 $ 3747
Expected to vest after September 30, 2016 (1) 1,116,147 $ 3747
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(1) RSUs expected to vest reflect an estimated forfeiture rate.

The Company recorded $4.6 million of stock-based compensation expense related to RSUs for the three months ended
September 30, 2016 and 2015. The Company recorded $12.3 million and $12.4 million of stock-based compensation
expense related to RSUs for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

As of September 30, 2016, there was $17.9 million of unrecognized compensation cost, adjusted for estimated
forfeitures, related to unvested RSUs granted to employees. Total unrecognized compensation cost will be adjusted for
future changes in estimated forfeitures and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average remaining period of
1.7 years.

Note 9. Investments

On November 4, 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement with a co-investment

vehicle arranged by Napier Park to participate in a joint venture formed as a Delaware limited liability
company—Blackbird Capital I, LLC (‘‘Blackbird’’) for the purpose of investing in commercial aircraft and leasing them to
airlines around the globe. We provide management services to the joint venture for a fee based upon aircraft assets

under management. The Company’s non-controlling interest in Blackbird is 9.5% and it is accounted for as an

investment under the equity method of accounting. The Company recognized $0.8 million and $2.1 million of gains

on the sale of aircraft to Blackbird during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As of
September 30,

14
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2016 and December 31, 2015, the amount due from Blackbird to the Company was $0.7 million. The Company's
investment in Blackbird was $24.6 million and $18.6 million as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015,
respectively and is recorded in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Note 10. Flight Equipment Held for Sale

In May 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell 25 Embraer E190 and E175 aircraft to Nordic Aviation Capital A/S
("NAC"). During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, we completed sales of one E175 aircraft and three E190
aircraft. As of September 30, 2016, we have completed the sale of eight Embraer aircraft to NAC. We expect to
complete the sales of the remaining 17 Embraer aircraft over the next two quarters.

In December 2015, we entered into an agreement to sell our fleet of 25 ATR turboprop aircraft, comprised of 20
delivered aircraft and five undelivered aircraft. During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, we completed sales of
two ATR aircraft. As of September 30, 2016, we have completed the sale of 20 ATR aircraft to NAC. We expect to
complete the sale of our existing ATR fleet and the remaining three ATR aircraft from our order book over the next
quarter at delivery.

The remaining two delivered ATR aircraft and 17 Embraer aircraft, with a carrying value of $460.3 million, were held
for sale and included in flight equipment subject to operating leases on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
September 30, 2016. We cease recognition of depreciation expense once an aircraft is classified as held for sale.

As of December 31, 2015, we had 19 aircraft, with a carrying value of $305.9 million, held for sale and included in
flight equipment subject to operating leases on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Note 11. Litigation

On April 22, 2015, the Company and certain executive officers and employees of the Company entered into a
settlement agreement and release ("the Settlement Agreement") with AIG, ILFC, and ILFC’s parent, AerCap Holdings
N.V., to settle all ongoing litigation. In the first quarter of 2015, the Company recorded settlement expense of $72.0
million on the Consolidated Statement of Income related to this settlement. During the first half of 2016, the Company
received $5.25 million in insurance recoveries related to this matter, which are included in aircraft sales, trading and
other revenue in our Consolidated Statement of Income.
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Note 12. Subsequent Events

On October 3, 2016, the Company issued $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due
2020 that bear interest at a rate of 2.125%

On November 2, 2016, our board of directors approved a quarterly cash dividend of $0.075 per share on our
outstanding common stock. The dividend will be paid on January 9, 2017 to holders of record of our common stock as
of December 12, 2016.
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ITEM 2.MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with
our consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q.

Overview

Air Lease Corporation is a leading aircraft leasing company that was founded by aircraft leasing industry pioneer,
Steven F. Udvar-Héazy. We are principally engaged in purchasing new commercial jet transport aircraft directly from
the manufacturers, such as Boeing and Airbus, and leasing those aircraft to airlines throughout the world with the
intention to generate attractive returns on equity. In addition to our leasing activities, we sell aircraft from our
operating lease portfolio to third-parties, including other leasing companies, financial services companies and airlines.
We also provide fleet management services to investors and owners of aircraft portfolios for a management fee. Our
operating performance is driven by the growth of our fleet, the terms of our leases, the interest rates on our debt, and
the aggregate amount of our indebtedness, supplemented by the gains from our aircraft sales and trading activities and
our management fees.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, we purchased and took delivery of six aircraft from our new order
pipeline, and sold seven aircraft, ending the quarter with a total of 244 aircraft, with a net book value of $11.9 billion.
The weighted average lease term remaining on our operating lease portfolio was 6.9 years and the weighted average
age of our fleet was 3.7 years as of September 30, 2016. Our fleet grew by 9.8% based on net book value of $11.9
billion as of September 30, 2016 compared to $10.8 billion as of December 31, 2015. In addition, we have a managed
fleet of 33 aircraft as of September 30, 2016 and 29 aircraft as of December 31, 2015. We have a globally diversified
customer base comprised of 88 airlines in 52 countries. 99% of the aircraft in our fleet were leased as of September
30, 2016.

During the first nine months of 2016, we entered into supplemental agreements and amendments to existing
agreements with Airbus and Boeing to purchase nine additional aircraft. From Airbus, we agreed to purchase one
A350-900 aircraft and one A321-200. From Boeing, we agreed to purchase six additional 737-8MAX aircraft and one
787-9 aircraft. Deliveries of the aircraft are scheduled to commence in 2017 and continue through 2021. As of
September 30, 2016, we had, in the aggregate, 372 aircraft on order with Boeing, Airbus and ATR for delivery
through 2023, with an estimate aggregate purchase price of $28.8 billion, making us one of the world's largest
customers for new commercial jet aircraft.
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In May 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell 25 Embraer E190 and E175 aircraft to Nordic Aviation Capital
("NAC"). As of September 30, 2016, eight aircraft had been transferred to NAC and the remaining 17 aircraft were
held for sale. We expect the sale of the 17 aircraft held for sale to be completed by the first quarter of 2017.

On October 17, 2016, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services raised its corporate credit and senior unsecured ratings on
ALC to 'BBB' with a stable outlook. While a ratings downgrade would not result in a default under any of our debt
agreements, it could adversely affect our ability to issue debt and obtain new financings, or renew existing financings,
and it would increase the cost of our financings.

On October 3, 2016, the Company issued $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due
2020 that bear interest at a rate of 2.125%.

On August 15, 2016, the Company issued $750.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due
2023 that bear interest at a rate of 3.00%.

On August 8, 2016, we executed a commitment increase to our unsecured revolving facility. This increased the
aggregate facility capacity by $35.0 million to $3.2 billion.

In April 2016, we issued $600.0 million in senior unsecured notes which mature in 2021 and bear interest at a rate of
3.375%. In May 2016, we amended and extended our four-year unsecured revolving credit facility whereby we
extended the maturity date from May 5, 2019 to May 5, 2020 and increased the total revolving commitments to
approximately $3.1 billion from approximately $2.8 billion. Effective October 17, 2016, the pricing of our unsecured
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revolving credit facility has been further reduced to LIBOR plus 1.05% with a 0.20% facility fee from LIBOR plus
1.25% with a 0.25% facility fee as a result of the upgraded investment grade corporate credit rating of 'BBB' obtained
from S&P.

We ended the third quarter of 2016 with total debt outstanding, net of discounts and issuance costs, of $8.6 billion, of
which 80.0% was at a fixed rate and 91.8% of which was unsecured, with a composite cost of funds of 3.44%. Since
the end of the third quarter, in October 2016, we issued $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior
unsecured notes due 2020.

Our total revenues for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 increased by 13.4% to $355.1 million, compared to the
quarter ended September 30, 2015. This is comprised of rental revenues on our operating lease portfolio of $340.9
million and aircraft sales, trading and other revenue of $14.2 million. During the quarter ended September 30, 2016,
we recorded gains of $10.0 million from the sale of seven aircraft from our operating lease portfolio, compared to
gains of $5.2 million from the sale of four aircraft from our operating lease portfolio for the quarter ended September
30, 2015.

Our net income for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 was $93.3 million compared to $77.0 million for the quarter
ended September 30, 2015, an increase of $16.2 million or 21.1%. Our diluted earnings per share for the quarter ended
September 30, 2016 was $0.86 compared to $0.71 for the quarter ended September 30, 2015. Our pre-tax profit
margin for the three months ended September 30, 2016 was 40.7% compared to 38.2% for the three months ended
September 30, 2015.

Excluding the effects of certain non-cash items, one-time or non-recurring items, such as settlement expense, net of
recoveries, that are not expected to continue in the future and certain other items, our adjusted net income before
income taxes was $157.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to $131.7 million for the
three months ended September 30, 2015, an increase of $25.6 million or 19.4%. Our adjusted margin for the three
months ended September 30, 2016 was 44.3% compared to 42.0% for the three months ended September 30,

2015. Adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes increased to $1.43 for the three months ended
September 30, 2016, compared to $1.20 for the three months ended September 30, 2015. Adjusted net income before
income taxes, adjusted margin and adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes are measures of financial
and operational performance that are not defined by GAAP. See Note 1 under the "Results of Operations" table for a
discussion of adjusted net income before income taxes, adjusted margin and adjusted diluted earnings per share before
income taxes as non-GAAP measures and reconciliation of these measures to net income.

Our fleet
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Portfolio metrics of our aircraft portfolio as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

September December

30, 2016 31, 2015
Owned fleet 244 240
Managed fleet 33 29
Order book 372 389
Weighted average fleet age(1) 3.7 years 3.6 years
Weighted average remaining lease term(1) 6.9 years 7.2 years
Aggregate fleet net book value $ 11,875,116 $ 10,813,475

(1) Weighted-average fleet age and remaining lease term calculated based on net book value.
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The following table sets forth the net book value and percentage of the net book value of our aircraft portfolio
operating in the indicated regions as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Region

Europe
China

Asia (excluding China)
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The Middle East and Africa
Central America, South America and Mexico

U.S. and Canada

Pacific, Australia, New Zealand

Total

The following table sets forth the number of aircraft we leased by aircraft type as of September 30, 2016 and

December 31, 2015:

September 30, 2016
Net Book
Value

$ 3,363,331 28.3
2,805,168 23.6
2,781,130 23.4

972,236 8.2
883,541 7.4
610,901 52
458,809 39

$ 11,875,116 100.0

% of Total

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

December 31, 2015
Net Book
Value

$ 3,238,323  30.0
2,444370 226
2,313,477 214

1,023,715 9.5
923,352 8.5
446,839 4.1
423,399 39

$ 10,813,475 100.0

% of Total

Number of Number of
Aircraft type Aircraft % of Total Aircraft
Airbus A319-100 3 1.2 % 3 1.3
Airbus A320-200 44 18.0 % 39 16.3
Airbus A321-200 30 12.3 % 26 10.9
Airbus A330-200 17 7.0 % 16 6.7
Airbus A330-300 5 2.1 % 5 2.1
Boeing 737-700 8 33 % 8 33
Boeing 737-800 93 38.1 % 19 329
Boeing 767-300ER 1 0.4 % 1 0.4
Boeing 777-200ER 1 0.4 % 1 0.4
Boeing 777-300ER 20 8.2 % 17 7.1
Boeing 787-9 2 0.8 % — 0.0
Embraer E175 0.8 % 5 2.1
Embraer E190 16 6.6 % 21 8.7
ATR 42/72-600 0.8 % 19 7.8
Total 244 100.0 % 240 100.0

September 30, 2016

December 31, 2015

% of Total

%
%
%
%
%
%
%
%

As of September 30, 2016 and through November 3, 2016, we had commitments to acquire a total of 372 new aircraft
for delivery as follows:
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Aircraft Type 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total
Airbus A320/A321-200 1 1 — — — — 2
Airbus A320/321neo(1)(2) 1 14 17 27 26 55 140
Airbus A330-800/900neo — — 5 5 5 10 25
Airbus A350-900/1000 — 2 4 2 8 8 24
Boeing 737-800 2 9 — — — — 11
Boeing 737-8/9 MAX — 2 1 19 30 56 118
Boeing 777-300ER 2 2 — — — — 4
Boeing 787-9/10 1 4 7 7 6 20 45
ATR 72-600(3) 3 — — — — — 3
Total 10 34 44 60 75 149 372

(1) Our Airbus A320/321neo aircraft orders include 40 long-range variants.

(2) Airbus has advised us to anticipate several month delays on up to eight Pratt & Whitney powered A320/321neo
aircraft scheduled for delivery in 2017.

(3) We have committed to sell all of our ATR aircraft on order.
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As of September 30, 2016, we had a non-binding commitment to acquire up to five A350-1000 aircraft. Deliveries of
these aircraft are scheduled to commence in 2023 and continue through 2024.

Our lease placements are progressing in line with expectations. As of September 30, 2016 and through November 3,
2016, we have entered into contracts for the lease of new aircraft scheduled to be delivered as follows:

Number of Number

Delivery Year Aircraft Leased % Leased
2016 (1) 10 8 80.0 %
2017 34 34 100.0 %
2018 44 38 86.4 %
2019 60 42 70.0 %
2020 75 17 22.7 %
Thereafter 149 4 2.7 %
Total 372 143

(1) Two unplaced ATR turboprop aircraft are expected to transfer to NAC upon delivery to us.

Aircraft industry and sources of revenues

Our revenues are principally derived from operating leases with scheduled and charter airlines. In each of the last
three years, we derived more than 95% of our revenues from airlines domiciled outside of the U.S., and we anticipate
that most of our revenues in the future will be generated from foreign customers.

Demand for air travel has consistently grown in terms of both passenger traffic and number of aircraft in service.
According to the International Air Transport Association (“IATA”), global passenger traffic demand has grown 5.8% in
the first eight months of 2016 compared to the first eight months of 2015. In 2015 and 2014, global passenger traffic
demand grew 6.5% and 5.9% respectively, which was in line with the annual growth rate over the past 30 years. The
number of aircraft in service has grown steadily and the number of leased aircraft in the global fleet has

increased. The long-term outlook for aircraft demand remains robust due to increased passenger traffic and the need

to replace aging aircraft.

The success of the commercial airline industry is linked to the strength of global economic development, which may
be negatively impacted by macroeconomic conditions, geopolitical and policy risks. Nevertheless, across a variety of
global economic conditions, the leasing industry has remained resilient over time. We remain optimistic about the
long-term growth prospects for air transportation. We see a growing demand for aircraft leasing in the broader
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industry and a role for us in helping airlines modernize their fleets to support the growth of the airline industry.
However, with the growth in aircraft leasing worldwide, we are witnessing an increase in competition among aircraft
lessors resulting in more variation in lease rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

We finance the purchase of aircraft and our business with available cash balances, internally generated funds,
including aircraft sales and trading activity, and debt financings. We have structured ourselves to have an
investment-grade credit profile and our debt financing strategy has focused on funding our business on an unsecured
basis. Unsecured financing provides us with operational flexibility when selling or transitioning aircraft from one
airline to another. In addition, we may, to a limited extent, utilize export credit financing in support of our new aircraft
deliveries.

We ended the third quarter of 2016 with total debt outstanding, net of discounts and issuance costs, of $8.6 billion
compared to $7.7 billion as of December 31, 2015. Our unsecured debt increased to $7.9 billion as of September 30,
2016 from $6.9 billion as of December 31, 2015. Our unsecured debt as a percentage of total debt increased to 91.8%
as of September 30, 2016 from 88.4% as of December 31, 2015.

We increased our cash flows from operations by 29.8% or $174.9 million, to $761.5 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2016 as compared to $586.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2015. Our cash
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flows from operations increased primarily because of our increased net income. Our cash flow used in investing
activities was $1.6 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2016, which resulted primarily from the purchase
of aircraft partially offset by proceeds on the sale of aircraft. Our cash flow provided by financing activities was
$903.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016, which resulted primarily from the issuances of
unsecured notes in 2016, partially offset by the repayment of outstanding debt.

We ended the third quarter of 2016 with available liquidity of $2.4 billion which is comprised of unrestricted cash of
$226.8 million and undrawn balances under our unsecured revolving credit facility of $2.1 billion. Including the $500
million of senior unsecured notes issued on October 3, 2016, at 2.125%, maturing in 2020, our available liquidity
increased to $2.9 billion. We believe that we have sufficient liquidity to satisfy the operating requirements of our
business through the next twelve months.

Our financing plan for the remainder of 2016 is focused on funding the purchase of aircraft and our business with
available cash balances, internally generated funds, including aircraft sales and trading activities, and debt financings.
Our debt financing plan is focused on continuing to raise unsecured debt in the global bank and investment grade
capital markets. In addition, we may utilize, to a limited extent, export credit financing in support of our new aircraft
deliveries.

We are in compliance in all material respects with all covenants or other requirements in our debt agreements. While a
ratings downgrade would not result in a default under any of our debt agreements, it could adversely affect our ability
to issue debt and obtain new financings, or renew existing financings, and it would increase the cost of certain
financings. Our liquidity plans are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including those described in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Debt

Our debt financing was comprised of the following at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 (dollars in
thousands):

September December
30, 2016 31, 2015
Unsecured
Senior notes $ 6,506,343 $ 5,677,769
Revolving credit facility 1,018,000 720,000
Term financings 214,734 292,788
Convertible senior notes 200,000 200,000
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Total unsecured debt financing 7,939,077 6,890,557
Secured

Term financings 654,166 477,231
Warehouse facility — 372,423
Export credit financing 53,238 58,229
Total secured debt financing 707,404 907,883
Total debt financing 8,046,481 7,798,440
Less: Debt discounts and issuance costs (91,749) (86,019)

Debt financing, net of discounts and issuance costs $ 8,554,732 $ 7,712,421
Selected interest rates and ratios:

Composite interest rate(1) 3.44 % 3.59 %
Composite interest rate on fixed-rate debt(1) 3.80 % 4.04 %
Percentage of total debt at fixed-rate 79.95 % 78.70 %

(1) This rate does not include the effect of upfront fees, undrawn fees or issuance cost amortization.

Senior unsecured notes

As of September 30, 2016, we had $6.5 billion in senior unsecured notes outstanding. As of December 31, 2015, we

had $5.7 billion in senior unsecured notes outstanding. Since the end of the third quarter, on October 3, 2016, we

issued $500.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due 2020 that bear interest at the rate of

2.125%.
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On August 15, 2016, the Company issued $750.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due
2023 that bear interest at a rate of 3.00%.

On August 2, 2016, the Company issued and sold $100.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.00% Senior
Unsecured Notes, Series A, due 2020 in a private placement that was not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Company also entered into an uncommitted shelf facility by which the Company may request that
certain parties purchase, until August 2, 2020, up to $200.0 million of additional senior unsecured notes of the
Company. The interest rate of such notes will be determined at the time of purchase. The parties to the facility are
under no obligation to purchase such notes.

On April 11, 2016, the Company issued $600.0 million in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes due
2021 that bear interest at a rate of 3.375%.

Unsecured revolving credit facility

On August 8, 2016, we executed a commitment increase to our unsecured revolving facility. This increased the
aggregate facility capacity by $35.0 million to $3.2 billion.

On May 27, 2016, we amended and extended our four-year unsecured revolving credit facility whereby we extended
the maturity date from May 5, 2019 to May 5, 2020 and increased the total revolving commitments to approximately
$3.1 billion from approximately $2.8 billion. At that time,the unsecured revolving credit facility was priced at LIBOR
plus 1.25% with a 0.25% facility fee, each subject to adjustments based on our credit ratings. Lenders hold revolving
commitments totaling approximately $2.8 billion that mature on May 5, 2020, commitments totaling $290.0 million
that mature on May 5, 2019, and commitments totaling $65.0 million that mature on May 5, 2018.

Effective October 17, 2016, the pricing of our unsecured revolving credit facility has been further reduced to LIBOR
plus 1.05% with a 0.20% facility fee as a result of the upgraded investment grade corporate credit rating of 'BBB'
obtained from S&P.

The total amount outstanding under our unsecured revolving credit facility was $1.0 billion and $720.0 million as of
September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
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Unsecured term financings

In March 2016, we entered into a $100.0 million one-year unsecured term facility bearing interest at a rate of LIBOR
plus 1.00%.

The outstanding balance on our unsecured term facilities as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 was
$214.7 million and $292.8 million, respectively.

Secured term financing

In June 2016, the availability period for our ability to draw from our warehouse facility expired. The outstanding
drawn balance at the end of the availability period was converted to an amortizing, four-year term loan with an interest
rate of LIBOR plus 2.00%. As of September 30, 2016, the Company's outstanding balance was $257.4 million and
pledged 12 aircraft with a net book value of $450.6 million were pledged as collateral. As of December 31, 2015, the
Company had borrowed $372.4 million under our warehouse facility and pledged 14 aircraft as collateral with a net
book value of $577.6 million.

As of September 30, 2016, the outstanding balance on our secured term facilities, including the converted warehouse
facility, was $654.2 million and we had pledged 25 aircraft as collateral with a net book value of $1.3 billion. The
outstanding balance under our secured term facilities as of September 30, 2016 was comprised of $38.8 million fixed
rate debt and $615.4 million floating rate debt, with interest rates ranging from 4.34% to 5.36% and LIBOR plus
1.15% to LIBOR plus 2.99%, respectively. As of September 30, 2016, the remaining maturities of all secured term
facilities ranged from approximately 0.3 years to approximately 6.8 years.
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As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding balance on our secured term facilities was $477.2 million and we had
pledged 15 aircraft as collateral with a net book value of $933.4 million. The outstanding balance under our secured
term facilities as of December 31, 2015 was comprised of $75.1 million fixed rate debt and $402.1 million floating
rate debt, with interest rates ranging from 4.28% to 5.36% and LIBOR plus 1.15% to LIBOR plus 2.99%,
respectively. As of December 31, 2015, the remaining maturities of all secured term facilities ranged from
approximately 0.1 years to approximately 7.5 years.

Credit ratings

On October 17, 2016, Standard & Poor's Ratings Services raised its corporate credit and senior unsecured ratings on
ALC to 'BBB' with a stable outlook.

The following table summarizes our current credit ratings:

Long-term Corporate Date of Last
Rating Agency Debt Rating Outlook Ratings Action
Standard and Poor's BBB BBB Stable Outlook October 17, 2016
Kroll Bond Rating Agency A- A- Stable Outlook December 7, 2015

While a ratings downgrade would not result in a default under any of our debt agreements, it could adversely affect
our ability to issue debt and obtain new financings, or renew existing financings, and it would increase the cost of our
financings.
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Results of Operations

The following table presents our historical operating results for the three and nine month periods ended September 30,
2016 and 2015 (in thousands, except percentages and per share data):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015

(in thousands)
Revenues
Rental of flight equipment $ 340,864 $ 304,264 $ 985,375 $ 860,281
Aircraft sales, trading and other 14,237 8,862 63,193 35,862
Total revenues 355,101 313,126 1,048,568 896,143
Expenses
Interest 64,720 60,103 188,870 173,654
Amortization of debt discounts and issuance costs 8,081 7,419 22,630 22,782
Interest expense 72,801 67,522 211,500 196,436
Depreciation of flight equipment 113,251 102,046 333,962 291,460
Settlement — — — 72,000
Selling, general and administrative 19,874 19,323 59,929 56,150
Stock-based compensation 4,602 4,648 12,342 12,372
Total expenses 210,528 193,539 617,733 628,418
Income before taxes 144,573 119,587 430,835 267,725
Income tax expense (51,297) (42,545) (152,898) (95,233)
Net income $ 93,276 $ 77,042 $ 277,937 $ 172,492

Net income per share of Class A and B common

stock

Basic $ 0.91 $ 0.75 $ 2.70 $ 1.68
Diluted $ 0.86 $ 071 $ 255 $ 1.60

Other financial data

Pre-tax profit margin 40.7 % 382 % 41.1 % 29.9 %
Adjusted net income before income taxes(1) $ 157,256 $ 131,654 $ 460,557 $ 374,879
Adjusted margin(1) 44.3 % 42.0 % 44.1 % 41.8 %
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before income

taxes(1) $ 143 $1.20 $ 4.20 $ 3.43

(1) Adjusted net income before income taxes (defined as net income excluding the effects of certain non-cash items,
one-time or non-recurring items, such as settlement expense, net of recoveries, that are not expected to continue in
the future and certain other items), adjusted margin (defined as adjusted net income before income taxes divided
by total revenues, excluding insurance recoveries) and adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes
(defined as adjusted net income before income taxes divided by the weighted average diluted common shares
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outstanding) are measures of operating performance that are not defined by GAAP and should not be considered
as an alternative to net income, pre-tax profit margin, earnings per share, and diluted earnings per share, or any
other performance measures derived in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted net income before income taxes,
adjusted margin and adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes, are presented as supplemental
disclosure because management believes they provide useful information on our earnings from ongoing
operations.

Management and our board of directors use adjusted net income before income taxes, adjusted margin and adjusted
diluted earnings per share before income taxes to assess our consolidated financial and operating

performance. Management believes these measures are helpful in evaluating the operating performance of our
ongoing operations and identifying trends in our performance, because they remove the effects of certain non-cash
items, one-time or non-recurring items that are not expected to continue in the future and certain other items from our
operating results. Adjusted net income before income taxes, adjusted margin and adjusted diluted earnings per share
before income taxes, however, should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our operating
results or cash flows as reported under GAAP. Adjusted net income before income taxes, adjusted margin and
adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes do not reflect our cash expenditures or changes in or cash
requirements for
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our working capital needs. In addition, our calculation of adjusted net income before income taxes, adjusted margin
and adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes may differ from the adjusted net income before income
taxes, adjusted margin and adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes or analogous calculations of other
companies in our industry, limiting their usefulness as a comparative measure.

The following tables show the reconciliation of net income to adjusted net income before income taxes and adjusted
margin (in thousands, except percentages):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Reconciliation of net income to adjusted net income
before income taxes:
Net income $ 93,276 $ 77,042 $ 277,937 $ 172,492
Amortization of debt discounts and issuance costs 8,081 7,419 22,630 22,782
Stock-based compensation 4,602 4,648 12,342 12,372
Settlement — — — 72,000
Insurance recovery on settlement — — (5,250 ) —
Provision for income taxes 51,297 42,545 152,898 95,233
Adjusted net income before income taxes $ 157256 $ 131,654 $ 460,557 $ 374,879
Adjusted margin(1) 44.3 % 420 % 441 % 418 %

(1) Adjusted margin is adjusted net income before income taxes divided by total revenues, excluding insurance
recoveries.

The following table shows the reconciliation of net income to adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Nine Months Ended
Three Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Reconciliation of net income to adjusted
diluted earnings per share before income
taxes:
Net income $ 93,276 $ 77,042 $ 277,937 $ 172,492
Amortization of debt discounts and
issuance costs 8,081 7,419 22,630 22,782
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Stock-based compensation 4,602 4,648 12,342 12,372
Settlement — — — 72,000
Insurance recovery on settlement — — (5,250) —
Provision for income taxes 51,297 42,545 152,898 95,233
Adjusted net income before income taxes $ 157,256 $ 131,654 $ 460,557 $ 374,879
Assumed conversion of convertible senior

notes 1,472 1,463 4,382 4,341
Adjusted net income before income taxes

plus assumed conversions $ 158,728 $ 133,117 $ 464,939 $ 379,220
Weighted-average diluted shares

outstanding 110,788,913 110,623,960 110,737,889 110,635,282
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before

income taxes $ 143 $ 1.20 $ 4.20 $ 3.43

Three months ended September 30, 2016, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2015

Rental revenue

As of September 30, 2016, we owned 244 aircraft at a net book value of $11.9 billion and recorded $340.9 million in
rental revenue for the quarter then ended September 30, 2016, which included overhaul revenue of $4.6 million. In the
prior year, as of September 30, 2015, we owned 235 aircraft at a net book value of $10.4 billion and recorded $304.3
million in rental revenue for the quarter ended September 30, 2015, which included overhaul revenue of $13.4
million.
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The increase in rental revenue was primarily attributable to the leasing of additional aircraft in this quarter and prior
periods, which was partially offset by the reduction in revenue from the sale of seven aircraft during the third quarter.

Aircraft sales, trading and other

Aircraft sales, trading and other revenue totaled $14.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016
compared to $8.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015. During the quarter ended September 30,
2016, we recorded $10.0 million in gains from the sale of seven aircraft from our operating lease portfolio. During the
quarter ended September 30, 2015, we recorded $5.2 million in gains from the sale of four aircraft from our operating
lease portfolio.

Interest expense

Interest expense totaled $72.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to $67.5 million for

the three months ended September 30, 2015. The change was primarily due to an increase in our average outstanding
debt balances partially offset by a decrease in our composite rate. We expect that our interest expense will increase as
our average debt balance outstanding continues to increase. Interest expense will also be impacted by changes in our
composite cost of funds.

Depreciation expense

We recorded $113.3 million in depreciation expense of flight equipment for the three months ended September 30,
2016 compared to $102.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015. The increase in depreciation
expense for the three months ended September 30, 2016, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2015, is
attributable to the acquisition of additional aircraft.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

We recorded selling, general and administrative expenses of $19.9 million for the three months ended September 30,
2016 compared to $19.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015. Selling, general and administrative
expense as a percentage of total revenue decreased to 5.6% for the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared
to 6.2% for the three months ended September 30, 2015. As we continue to add new aircraft to our portfolio, we
expect over the long-term, selling, general and administrative expense to decrease as a percentage of revenue.
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Taxes

The effective tax rate was 35.5% and 35.6% for the three months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Net income

For the three months ended September 30, 2016, we reported consolidated net income of $93.3 million, or $0.86 per
diluted share, compared to a consolidated net income of $77.0 million, or $0.71 per diluted share, for the three months
ended September 30, 2015. The increase in net income for the third quarter of 2016 compared to the third quarter of
2015, was primarily attributable to the lease of additional aircraft.

Adjusted net income before income taxes

For the three months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded adjusted net income before income taxes of $157.3
million, or $1.43 per adjusted diluted share before income taxes, compared to an adjusted net income before income
taxes of $131.7 million, or $1.20 per adjusted diluted share before income taxes, for the three months ended
September 30, 2015. The increase in adjusted net income before income taxes for the third quarter of 2016 compared
to the third quarter of 2015, was primarily attributable to the lease of additional aircraft.

Adjusted net income before income taxes and adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes are measures of
financial and operational performance that are not defined by GAAP. See Note 1 under the "Results of Operations"
table above for a discussion of adjusted net income before income taxes and adjusted diluted earnings per share before
income taxes as non-GAAP measures and reconciliation of these measures to net income.
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Nine months ended September 30, 2016, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2015

Rental revenue

As of September 30, 2016, we owned 244 aircraft at a net book value of $11.9 billion and recorded $985.4 million in
rental revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2016, which included overhaul revenue of $8.1 million. In the
prior year, as of September 30, 2015, we owned 235 aircraft at a net book value of $10.4 billion and recorded $860.3
million in rental revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2015, which included overhaul revenue of $23.4
million. The increase in rental revenue was primarily attributable to the leasing of additional aircraft in this period
and prior periods.

Aircraft sales, trading and other

Aircraft sales, trading and other revenue totaled $63.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016
compared to $35.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2015. During the nine months ended September
30, 2016, we recorded $47.7 million in gains from the sale of 29 aircraft from our operating lease portfolio. In
addition, we received insurance proceeds of $5.25 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2016 in
connection with the litigation settlement discussed in Note 11: Litigation, in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2015, we recorded $29.1 million in gains from the sale of 20 aircraft from our operating lease portfolio.

Interest expense

Interest expense totaled $211.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to $196.4 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2015. The change was primarily due to an increase in our average outstanding
debt balances partially offset by a decrease in our composite rate. We expect that our interest expense will increase as
our average debt balance outstanding continues to increase. Interest expense will also be impacted by changes in our
composite cost of funds.

Depreciation expense
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We recorded $334.0 million in depreciation expense of flight equipment for the nine months ended September 30,
2016 compared to $291.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2015. The increase in depreciation
expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2016, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2015, is
attributable to the acquisition of additional aircraft.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

We recorded selling, general and administrative expenses of $59.9 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2016 compared to $56.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2015. Selling, general and administrative
expense as a percentage of total revenue decreased to 5.7% for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared
to 6.3% for the nine months ended September 30, 2015. As we continue to add new aircraft to our portfolio, we expect
over the long-term, selling, general and administrative expense to decrease as a percentage of our revenue.

Settlement expense

During the nine months ended September 30, 2015, we recorded settlement expense of $72.0 million resulting from
the Settlement Agreement entered into by and between us, certain of our executive officers and employees, AIG,
ILFC, and AerCap Holdings N.V., to settle all ongoing litigation as set forth in Note 11: Litigation in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Taxes

The effective tax rate was 35.5% and 35.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Net income

For the nine months ended September 30, 2016, we reported consolidated net income of $277.9 million, or $2.55 per
diluted share, compared to a consolidated net income of $172.5 million, or $1.60 per diluted share, for the nine
months ended September 30, 2015. Net income and diluted earnings per share for the nine months ended September
30, 2015 were negatively impacted by the litigation settlement discussed in Note 11: Litigation, in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Adjusted net income before income taxes

For the nine months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded adjusted net income before income taxes of $460.6
million, or $4.20 per adjusted diluted share before income taxes, compared to an adjusted net income before income
taxes of $374.9 million, or $3.43 per adjusted diluted share before income taxes, for the nine months ended September
30, 2015. The increase in adjusted net income before income taxes for the third quarter of 2016 compared to the third
quarter of 2015, was primarily attributable to the lease of additional aircraft.

Adjusted net income before income taxes and adjusted diluted earnings per share before income taxes are measures of
financial and operational performance that are not defined by GAAP. See Note 1 under the "Results of Operations"
table above for a discussion of adjusted net income before income taxes and adjusted diluted earnings per share before
income taxes as non-GAAP measures and reconciliation of these measures to net income.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of September 30, 2016, are as follows (in thousands):

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total
Long-term debt
obligations $ 93,573 $ 1,412,525 $ 1,466,778 $ 1,073,411 $ 1,557,266  $ 3,042,928 $ 8,646,481
Interest
payments on
debt
outstanding(1) 70,961 268,609 222,876 175,229 130,636 212,626 1,080,937
Purchase
commitments 700,749 2,790,354 3,791,575 4,629,955 5,878,157 10,959,387 28,750,177
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Operating
leases 644 2,619 2,926 3,232 3,111 9,750 22,282
Total $ 865,927 $ 4,474,107 $ 5484,155 $ 5,881,827 $ 7,569,170  $ 14,224,691  $ 38,499,877

(1) Future interest payments on floating rate debt are estimated using floating rates in effect at September 30, 2016.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not established any unconsolidated entities for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or
for other contractually narrow or limited purposes. We have, however, from time to time established subsidiaries and
created partnership arrangements or trusts for the purpose of leasing aircraft or facilitating borrowing arrangements,
all of which are consolidated.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our critical accounting policies reflecting management’s estimates and judgments are described in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. We have reviewed recently adopted accounting
pronouncements and determined that the adoption of such pronouncements is not expected to have a material impact,
if any, on its consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, there have been no changes to critical accounting
policies in the nine months ended September 30, 2016.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a financial instrument, caused by fluctuations in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates. Changes in these factors could cause fluctuations in our results of operations and cash
flows. We are exposed to the market risks described below.

Interest Rate Risk

The nature of our business exposes us to market risk arising from changes in interest rates. Changes, both increases
and decreases, in our cost of borrowing, as reflected in our composite interest rate, directly impact our net income.
Our lease rental stream is generally fixed over the life of our leases, whereas we have used floating-rate debt to
finance a portion of our aircraft acquisitions from time to time. We had $1.7 billion in floating-rate debt outstanding
on each of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. If interest rates increase, we would be obligated to make
higher interest payments to our lenders. As we incur significant fixed-rate debt in the future, increased interest rates
prevailing in the market at the time of the incurrence of such debt will increase our interest expense. If the composite
rate on our floating-rate debt were to increase by 1.0%, we would expect to incur additional interest expense on our
existing indebtedness of approximately $17.3 million and $16.6 million as of September 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, respectively, on an annualized basis, which would put downward pressure on our operating margins. Further, as
of September 30, 2016, 80.0% of our total debt incurred interest at a fixed rate.

We also have interest rate risk on our forward lease placements. This is caused by us setting a fixed lease rate in
advance of the delivery date of an aircraft. The delivery date is when a majority of the financing for an aircraft is
arranged. We partially mitigate the risk of an increasing interest rate environment between the lease signing date and
the delivery date of the aircraft by having interest rate adjusters in a majority of our forward lease contracts which
would adjust the final lease rate upward if certain benchmark interest rates are higher at the time of delivery of the
aircraft than at the lease signing date.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

We attempt to minimize currency and exchange risks by entering into aircraft purchase agreements and a majority of
lease agreements and debt agreements with U.S. dollars as the designated payment currency. Thus, most of our
revenue and expenses are denominated in U.S. dollars. As of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 1.0% and
0.8%, respectively, of our lease revenues were denominated in Euros. As our principal currency is the U.S. dollar,
changes in the U.S. dollar as compared to other major currencies should not have a significant impact on our future
operating results.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in our filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and
such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer (collectively, the “Certifying Officers™), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. Our management, including the Certifying Officers, recognizes that any set of controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired
control objectives.

We have evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Certifying
Officers, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of September 30, 2016. Based on that evaluation, our Certifying
Officers have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at September 30, 2016.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30,
2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in litigation and claims incidental to the conduct of our business in the
ordinary course. Our industry is also subject to scrutiny by government regulators, which could result in enforcement
proceedings or litigation related to regulatory compliance matters. We are not presently a party to any enforcement
proceedings or litigation related to regulatory compliance matters or material legal proceedings. We maintain
insurance policies in amounts and with the coverage and deductibles we believe are adequate, based on the nature and
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risks of our business, historical experience and industry standards.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes in our risk factors from those discussed under “Part [—Item 1A. Risk Factors,” in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 and “Part [I—Item 1A. Risk Factors,” in our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

12.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

101.INS

101.SCH

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRE

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Air Lease Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on January 14, 2011 (File No. 333-171734)).

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of Air Lease Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2016 (File No. 001-35121)).

Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 15, 2016, to the October 2012 Indenture by and
between Air Lease Corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee (relating
3.00% Senior Notes due 2023) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on August 15, 2016 (File No. 001-35121)).

Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 3, 2016, to the October 2012 Indenture by and
between Air Lease Corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee (relating
2.125% Senior Notes due 2020) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2016 (File No. 001-35121))

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and President Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and President Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith).

Certification of the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished
herewith).

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

AIR LEASE CORPORATION

November 3, 2016 /s/ John L. Plueger
John L. Plueger
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

November 3, 2016 /s/ Gregory B. Willis
Gregory B. Willis
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
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Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Air Lease Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on January 14, 2011 (File No. 333-171734)).

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of Air Lease Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2016 (File No. 001-35121)).

Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 15, 2016, to the October 2012 Indenture by and
between Air Lease Corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee (relating
3.00% Senior Notes due 2023) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on August 15, 2016 (File No. 001-35121)).

Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 3, 2016, to the October 2012 Indenture by and
between Air Lease Corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Trustee (relating
2.125% Senior Notes due 2020) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2016 (File No. 001-35121)).

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and President Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and President Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith).

Certification of the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished
herewith).

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

Table of Contents 110



32

Edgar Filing: SUNTRUST BANKS INC - Form 424B2

Table of Contents

111



